7 651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIE AGENCY Roseville, CA 95678

I A : phone  (916) 781-3636

¢/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Minutes

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject:  June 23, 2016, NCPA Commission Meeting

Item #1 — Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chairperson Carol Garcia called the meeting to order at 9:03 am at Mitchell Park Community
Center, 3700 Middlefield Road, California, Palo Alto. A quorum was present. Introductions were
made. Those in attendance are shown on the attached attendance list.

Item #2 — Approve Minutes of the May 26, 2016, Regular Commission Meeting

Mofion: A motion was made by Gary Plass and seconded by Bob Lingl to approve the Minutes of

the May 26, 2016, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried unanimously on a voice vote
of those members present.

PUBLIC FORUM

Chairperson Garcia asked if any members of the public were present who would like to
address the Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

Member of Month wa_s Jane Cirrincione NCPA's Assistant General Manager of Legislative and
Regulatory Affairs.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

Item #3 — General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

— Gave an update on the issues surrounding Aliso Canyon.
.— Inthe process of conducting annual NCPA Member visits.

— Gave a brief update on the City of Shasta Lake’s membership proposal. This agreement is ltem
#23 on today’s Agenda.

— Provided a brief update on the Placer County Water Agency’s agreement with NCPA for Power
Management services. This agreement is Item #22 on today’s agenda.

— Meeting next week with Merced Irrigation District staff regarding potential Power Management
Services.

— Provided an update on the EIM regionalization discussions and activities.



— Discussed CalFire’s Press Release announcing over 66 million trees dead in California, which is
double from last year's count. NCPA'’s Legislative and Regulatory Affairs staff continues to stay
engaged in the state legislature on this issue.

— Arequest from BART’s Commissioner to have the ability to call-in to Commission meetings due
to chronic back issues was discussed at the Executive Committee meeting. Staff is looking at
putting something in place and will bring back to the Executive Committee for discussion and
then Commission approval.

Item #4 — Executive Committee

Committee Chair CaroI'Garcia reported that the Committee met that morning. The Committee
heard a report from the General Manager, discussed the FY 2017 Slate of Officers and one
Closed Session item. No reportable action was taken on the Closed Session item.

Item #5 — Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Dave Dockham reported the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met at its regular scheduled meeting and discussed Items
13-19 on today’s Agenda. A quorum of the Committee was present at the meeting. The
Committee recommended Commission approval of all items.

Item #6 — Finance Committee

Committee Chair Gary Plass reported the Committee did not meet. An RFP to solicit proposals to
refund the 2008C Hydroelectric bonds, the Geothermal bonds and a portion of the LEC bonds was
issued this month — responses are due next week. A special meeting will be held in July to consider
RFP responses. Fitch provided a formal review of NCPA's credit rating - all project ratings were

affirmed with no changes from the current levels. The next Committee meeting is on August 10" at
10:00 am.

Item #7 — Legal Committee

General Counsel Michael Dean reported the Legal Committee met twice and discussed Closed
Session ltem 26 on today’s agenda. No reportable action was taken on that item.

Item #8 — Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Chair Bob Lingl reported the Committee did not meet, but provided an update on
legislative issues.

A delegation of NCPA members represented the Agency during the American Public Power
Association’s National Conference in Phoenix last week.

The NCPA State Legislative Staff Tour is scheduled for July 13-15, and will be hosted by Alameda,
BART, Port of Oakland, Silicon Valley Power, and the City of Palo Alto.

The next L&R Affairs Committee meeting is scheduled on August 24™ at Plumas-Sierra REC.
Item #9 — Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

No member announcements or reports.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
June 23, 2016



CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to
determine if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent
Calendar. No items were pulled for discussion.

Motion: A motion was made by Roger Frith and seconded by Gary Plass to approve the Consent
Calendar consisting of ltems 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, and 20. The motion carried by a
majority of those members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each item.
BART, Gridley, Lodi, Redding, Truckee Donner, and Plumas-Sierra were absent.

Item #10 — NCPA’s Financials for the Month Ended May 31, 2016 — approval by all members.
Item #11 — Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended May 31, 2016 — accept by all members.

Item #12 — Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property — note and file by all members the disposal of gas
flex hoses. Fiscal Impact: none.

Item #13 — Resolution 16-43, Insurance Brokerage Services Request for Proposal Results and
Recommendation for Broker Selection — adopt resolution by all members approving the
recommendation of broker selection and the attached brokerage service agreement with Aon Risk
Insurance Services West Inc., and authorizes the Agency’s General Manager to execute the
brokerage service agreement on behalf of the Agency.

Fiscal Impact: NCPA insurance program premiums and brokerage fee are budgeted as part of the
aggregate Property, Liability, and Workers Compensation Insurance cost estimates, which are charged
off proportionately at approximately 80% for Property Insurance and 20% for Liability Insurance based
on total premiums paid. The fees and premiums in total are then allocated to projects based on
insured values at each plant site, with the liability insurance charged to Administrative & General costs.
The proposed annual fee is $125,000 per year with a 3% escalator, significantly less than the current
cost of $281,000. The aforementioned annual fee is significantly (more than 50%) below the
Commission approved FY 2016-17 annual budget for this item.

Item #14 — Resolution 16-44, Approve Chemical Waste Management, Inc. — First Amendment
to Kettleman Hills Landfill Industrial Waste Services and Disposal Agreement — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the existing 36-month Industrial Waste Services & Disposal Agreement with
Chemical Waste Management, Inc., Kettleman Hills Landfill which expires on April 26, 2018,
increasing the not to exceed amount from $150,000 to $500,000, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, for use at the Geothermal Facility
(GEO).

Fiscal Impact: when executed, the agreement will have a not to exceed of $500,000 over the 36
month term. GEO will use NCPA approved budgets (505-023-000-632-044-000 Solid Hazardous
Waste Disposal) as Purchase Orders are issued. The Purchase Orders will reference the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA Procurement policies and procedures. -
Cost allocation will be based on project participation percentages.

Palo Alto abstained. '

Item #15 — Resolution 16-45, Approve Expro Americas, LLC Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to
enter into a Multi-Task Consuiting Services Agreement with Expro Americas, LLC for wireline tools
and operator and related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved
by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes . 3
June 23, 2016



Fiscal Impact: upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed of $1,000,000 over
five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Item #16 — Resolution 16-46, Approve Precision Iceblast Corporation — Five Year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement for Inspection and Maintenance Services; Applicable to the
following projects: All NCPA Generation Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and
SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Precision Iceblast Corporation
for inspection and maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $850,000 over five years for use at
all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members.

Fiscal Impact: total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $850,000 over five years to be used out
of NCPA approved budgets as services rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Item #17 — Resolution 16-47, Approve Quantum Spatial, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations,
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Quantum Spatial, Inc. with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(*SCPPA”"), or by SCPPA members.

Fiscal Impact: upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $2,000,000 over
five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

Item #18 — Resolution 16-48, Approval of the Professional Services Agreement between NCPA
and the BAMx Participiants; and Amendment No. 1 to the Consulting Services Agreement
between NCPA and Flynn Resources Consulting, Inc. — adopt resolution by all members
authorizing the General Manager of NCPA to execute the Professional Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and the cities of Palo Alto and Santa Clara, including any non-
substantive modifications to the Professional Services Agreement approved by NCPA’s General
Counsel; and upon return of the fully executed Professional Services Agreement by each BAMx
Member, authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Consulting
Services Agreement between Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resource Consultants Inc.,
including any non-substantive modifications to the Consulting Services Agreement approved by
NCPA’s General Counsel.

Fiscal Impact: total expenditures authorized under the Consulting Services Agreement shall not
exceed: (i) $760,000 during the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, and (ii) $650,000
during the period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. In addition to costs incurred under the
Consulting Services Agreement, NCPA will invoice the BAMx Members $625 each month for related
billing services under the Professional Services Agreement. Payments for services provided under
the Consulting Services Agreement and Professional Services Agreement are accounted for in the
current fiscal year budget, and all costs incurred for the services shall be allocated to the BAMx
Members.

Port of Oakland abstained.

Item #19 — Resolution 16-49, Approval of a Second Phase Agreement for Renewable Energy
Power Purchase Agreement — adopt resolution by all members approving the Second Phase
Agreement for Renewable Energy Power Purchase Agreement as an NCPA project; and authorize
the General Manager of NCPA to execute the Second Phase Agreement for Renewable Energy

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
June 23, 2016



Purchase Power Agreement, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

Fiscal Impact: pursuant to the Second Phase Agreement, the Participants agree to pay NCPA for
all actual costs, including, but not limited to, administrative costs, including legal fees, associated
with the activities under the Second Phase Agreement, which are estimated to be $35,000 or less.

Item #20 — Resolution 16-51, Approval to Rescind Previous Smart Grid Project Agreement and
Approval of New Smart Grid Project Agreement — adopt resolution by all members rescinding the
previously approved, unexecuted Smart Grid Project Agreement between Northern California Power
Agency and Contracting Participants; approving the new form of the Smart Grid Project Agreement,
including any non-substantive modifications to the Agreement as approved by NCPA’s General
Counsel; authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute the Agreement and revise Exhibit A as
individual members execute the Agreement; and approving an addition to the NCPA FY 2017 Budget
for an amount to be determined based on the sum of each Contracting Participant’s authorized
maximum budget amounts in the “Participant Pass-Through Account, Smart Grid Program” to provide
funding for this Agreement. Due to the multi-year nature of these activities, this funding authorization
will carry over for several years to complete the project.

Fiscal Impact: total cost of the project is not to exceed an amount to be determined by the sum of
each Contracting Participant’s maximum authorized budget amount over the ten year term of the
Agreement. This project was not included in either the current or upcoming 2017 fiscal year budget.
The budget will be augmented by adding additional funds as determined above, to accounts in the
Participant Pass-Through Program. Costs for identified utility-specific work will be directly allocated
to the appropriate Contracting Participant, where possible. For costs associated with joint activities
for identified tasks performed during a given fiscal year, cost allocation will be based on applicable
costs evenly divided among the number of Contracting Participants for a specific task. Allocations
for future tasks may be based on different, agreed upon cost allocation methodology among the
Contracting Participants of each individual task under the Smart Grid Program.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

Item #21 — Status of NCPA’s Energy Risk Management Program — receive and file by all
members the activities and accomplishments of the Energy Risk Management Program for the last
year and the goals for the coming year.

Fiscal Impact: the Energy Risk Management Program budget for FY16 was $204,512 including both
staff and program costs. Total unaudited expenditures for the FY were $180,952 as of May 31, 2016
or 88% of budget.

Assistant General Manager of Administrative Services/CFO Donna Stevéner provided a presentation
on the Energy Risk Management Program. No formal action was required for this item.

Item #22 — Resolution 16-50, Approval of Services Agreement between NCPA and PCWA —
adopt resolution by all members approving the Services Agreement with Placer County Water Agency;
and authorize the General Manager to execute the Services Agreement with Placer County Water
Agency, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications approved by NCPA’s General
Counsel. '

Fiscal Impact: in consideration for NCPA'’s provision of services under the Services Agreement,
PCWA shall pay NCPA an amount equal to $410,000 for services rendered during the first one (1)
year period of the term of the Services Agreement. For each subsequent one (1) year period of the
term of the Services Agreement, PCWA shall pay NCPA an amount equal to the sum of the annual
amount charged to PCWA during the prior year escalated at a rate of 2.5% per year. In addition to
such compensation, PCWA shall compensate NCPA for all supplemental services supplied to PCWA
on a time and materials basis, in accordance with the applicable supplemental services wage schedule
contained in the Services Agreement.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
June 23, 2016 )



NCPA staff Tony Zimmer provided a presentation on the agreement for Power Management services
between Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) and NCPA. Andy Fecko and Katie Swanberg of
PCWA thanked the Commission for opening up these types of services to non NCPA members, and
thanked NCPA staff for their time and effort in putting together this agreement.

Motion: A motion was made by Greg Scharff and seconded by Glenn Steiger to adopt Resolution 16-
50, Approval of Services Agreement with Placer County Water Agency and NCPA; and authorize the
General Manager to execute the Services Agreement with Placer County Water Agency, on behalf of
NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote of those members present. BART, Gridley, Lodi,
Redding, Truckee Donner, and Plumas-Sierra were absent.

Item #23 — Resolution 16-52, Consider Application for Membership by the City of Shasta Lake
and Recommendation to Approve Supplement No. 1 to Amended and Restated NCPA Joint
Powers Agreement — adopt resolution by all members approving that all NCPA members and the City
of Shasta Lake take action to approve Supplement No. 1 to Amended and Restated Northern
California Power Agency Joint Powers Agreement, adding the City of Shasta Lake (City) as a Party to
NCPA.

Fiscal Impact: if approved for membership, the City would pay $128,864 toward the NCPA FY17
Legislative and Regulatory Affairs budget: This amount includes payment of $28,978 toward the JPA
fee.

General Manager Randy Howard provided a brief background on the process regarding the City of
Shasta Lake submitting their membership application. Assistant General Manager of Legislative and
Regulatory Affairs Jane Cirrincione gave a brief presentation on the City of Shasta Lake New Member
Application. The City of Shasta Lake is requesting to only be in the Legislative and Regulatory
program at this time — could ask for Power Management services in the future. Commission asked
that an elected official be appointed as the City of Shasta Lake’s representative on the Commission.
General Counsel Michael Dean noted that the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) implies that each
member appoints their Commissioner and it is at the member’s discretion to make that appointment. It
was noted that Supplement No. 1 requires unanimous signatures by all member’s governing bodies.

Motion: A motion was made by Gary Plass and seconded by Basil Wong to approve Resolution
16-52, Consider Application for Membership by the City of Shasta Lake and Recommendation to
Approve Supplement No. 1 to Amended and Restated NCPA Joint Powers Agreement. The motion
carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present. Palo Alto voted no. BART,
Gridley, Lodi, Redding, Truckee Donner, and Plumas-Sierra were absent.

Item #24 — Election of Officers and Executive Committee Members — election of a chairman and
vice chair of the Commission and election of 3 at large representatives to the Executive Committee.
The Nominating Committee nominations for FY 2017 Officers and Executive Committee members are:

Chairman Bob Lingl

Vice Chair Gary Plass

Executive Committee memberMark Chandler
Executive Committee memberRoger Frith
Executive Committee memberTeresa O’Neill

Chairperson Garcia noted that this item is information only and is being differed to the July
Commission for approval.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 6
June 23, 2016



INFORMATION ITEMS

Item #25 — Hydrology Report — Assistant General Manager Ken Speer provided a presentation on
the water storage at New Spicer Reservoir. It was noted that this will be the last report to the
Commission on hydrology unless requested.

CLOSED SESSION

Item #26 — CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing litigation pursuant to Government
Code Section 54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: - Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City
of Roseville, and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims no. 14-817C.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Upon return to open session, General Counsel Michael Dean reported there was no reportable action
on Closed Session Item 26.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business was discussed.

ADJOURNMENT

The June 23, 2016, Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:46 am.

Respectfully submitted,

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes ) 7
June 23, 2016



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of June 23, 2016

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER / / NAME
» ///\/7 A e
- ALAMEDA ’W
L i i
7T v
BIGGS \’i c 62\;(“‘% FLL
GRIDLEY G\
N
HEALDSBURG \7 /j)%}\\
/s
LODI
LOMPOC @b /.
~C
. P
PALO ALTO Grep Te [o Pl
PORT OF OAKLAND Basi| W A
y,
PLUMAS-SIERRA REC
REDDING
ROSEVILLE P
vﬁ/ﬁf'/tﬁt//.ézm-”

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT

Yo ,
= n
TRUCKEE DONNER |
UKIAH




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of June 23, 2016
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the

public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
é)é(_ \ w \/ Lpoygpe
_ Ken 2 %pee LA
Dinpa Stedese, , NC FA-
E?.?enc. : Bﬁ{f- g
abt Swuanlpens PCAIH
A O i P2 Couwh
_Michelle Bvaolns K teenile
Wc/é ek CNCFA
/04% Zonrae e ,ﬂ/é//}'
M Doclisun LNCRA
and i WAOV@ M‘ZA’A’“
A/ oamerts o,

7y —

A -0

Jhgn i

(.
O wm@e%

5‘7%7% C/Q P‘Q/
b A 4 AN




Y A pusLic AGENCY

CONSENT CALENDAR

4
# NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

Commission Meeting Date: w\a?)\\ L-Q

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # \B to# QB

Consent Items Removed from thet?ienda and Approved Separately:
#

bugs| bald

ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS:

Absent

<
)
]

Member Item Numbers Abstained

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto \4

Port of Oakland \%

Redding

Roseville

A lee] K| «| 1

Santa Clara

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

| Plumas-Sierra N

ATTEST:

Cary A. Pac
Assistant Secretary to the Commission



Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: j:\‘u\(\ :H: gé\

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

<
o}
—
m

ABSTAIN ABSENT

X

.

L rr] ] ] ]

Passed and adopted this 23 day of June 2016, by the above vote on roll call.

(Gl Goam v DN

CAROL GARCIA
Chairperson

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary



Topic: I"E)f\f\ g’%ﬁ

Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Alameda

BART

Biggs
.Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

1 kbR

ABSTAIN ABSENT

N

S

Passed and adopted this 23" day of June 2016, by the above vote on roll call.

CAROL GARCIA
Chairperson

CARY ANPADGETT &
Assistant Secretary



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNJA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone  (916) 781-3636

fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6

Date: July 27, 2016
To: NCPA Commission

Subject: Draft Finance Committee Special Meeting Minutes — July 12, 2016

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



& 651 Commerce Drive
/A PUBLIC AGENCY Roseville, CA 95678

' N C I A phone (916) 781-3636
/NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com
FROM: Donna Stevener, AGM Finance/Administrative Services

TO: NCPA Finance Committee

SUBJECT: NCPA Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of July 12, 2016

Finance Committee Attendees:
Committee Members: Attended: Consuitants:
Gary Plass Healdsburg Call-in Harry Kightlinger PFM
Bob Orbeta Alameda Call-in Mike Berwanger PFM
Jordan Ayers Lodi Call-in Tyler Old PFM
Monty Hanks Roseville Call-in
Gene Carron Orrick
Larry Sobel Orrick
NCPA Staff: Marc Bauer Orrick
Donna Stevener ‘
Sondra Ainsworth .
Trisha Hubbard May Qiu SVP
Michelle Schellentrager

1. & 2. Call Meeting to Order and Roll Call
Chairman Gary Plass called the meeting to order at 11:32 a.m. and roll call was conducted as
listed above.

PUBLIC FORUM

Mr. Plass asked if anyone wished to address the Commitiee on matters within the jurisdiction of
the Committee. No one from the public was present at the site or at any of the teleconference
locations.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE ACTION ITEMS

4. Evaluate and Recommend Selection of Banker for the Direct Purchase Request for
Proposal (RFP)

Ms. Stevener reminded the Committee that at the last Finance Committee meeting a banking
proposal had been presented regarding the refunding of some of the Hydroelectric bonds that
was interesting to the Committee. At the meeting, the Committee decided to issue a Request
for Proposal (RFP) for a Direct Purchase Loan to refinance portions of the Geothermal,
Hydroelectric and Lodi Energy Center Bonds. Our Financial Advisor, PFM, prepared an RFP
and distributed it to over 60 banks, with 10 responding by the due date of June 21%'. PFM



July 12, 2016 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
Page 2

and staff evaluated the RFP responses. Ms. Stevener then turned the presentation over to
Mike Berwanger, PFM, to provide a recap of the responses and answer questions.

Mr. Berwanger indicated that since this was a Direct Purchase Refinancing, the list of banks
was much broader than we typically use in a public sale scenario and the respondents were
banks we don’t usually see responses from, including Deutsche Bank, Captial One and
others. In addition, Goldman Sachs, Wells Fargo, US Bank, and Bank of America also
provided responses. The good news is that rates have dropped 25 basis points on the long
end of the curve since our last Finance Committee meeting. This drop was primarily due to
the United Kingdom voting to leave the European Union (Brexit). PFM prepared cost savings
analyses on each submitted proposal using rates as of June 21%, therefore any expected
savings could be better than shown due to the recent rate drop.

All of the proposed refundings apply to bonds that are refundable in the future (2018 and
later) and some of the proposals are quite complex. PFM provided savings comparisons
between the Direct Purchase, Private Placement and Public Sale structures and reviewed
them with the Committee. Mr. Berwanger explained the differences between the various
structures and the varying amount of public disclosure required for each type. A public sale
would require a full official statement, a private placement (10 — 15 investors) a shorter
official statement type document and a direct purchase has no disclosure since it is a direct
loan with the bank.

PFM recommended that the Committee consider the proposed Geothermal refunding as the
most attractive offer from the RFP responses. The question is which structure to use. A
Direct Purchase would be the most streamlined process (6 — 8 weeks), no official statement
required, and less market risk (proposal is a fixed rate established with a spread to an index),
although slightly lower potential savings. The Private Placement and public sale structures
require disclosure preparation by NCPA and the participants, higher cost of issuance, would
take longer (3 — 4 months) to complete and bears full market risk. After discussion of the
options, the Committee decided that the Direct Purchase option would be the best structure
at this time and the following motion was made:

Motion:

Motion was made to accept the proposal for a fixed rate refunding by Bank of America N.A.
for the Geothermal project and to recommend that the Commission authorize a direct loan
with the Bank of America for a term of 8 years for the refinancing of the 2009A Geothermal
Project bonds.

1%t Jordan Ayers
2" Monty Hanks

Representative Member Org  Vote
Gary Plass, Chairman | Healdsburg Yes
Bob Orbeta Alameda Yes
Jordan Ayers Lodi Yes
Monty Hanks Roseville Yes

Voting Results: 4 Ayes, 0 Noes, 0 Abstain, 0 Absent



July 12, 2016 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
Page 3

Mr. Plass left the meeting at 12:05 p.m.

The Committee then continued discussion of the Lodi Energy Center and Hydroelectric
proposal responses. Most of the proposals for these projects were in the 5 — 6% range,
barely above the minimum 5% present value savings criteria in our debt management policy,
For the Lodi Energy Center, the call date is 10 years away and the efficiency of the
transaction is really low. The Hydroelectric project had one proposal in the 7% range,
however the proposal had some complicated tax issues that need further refinement to meet
our bond counsel approval. After much discussion, the Committee indicated they were not
interested in pursuing a refunding of these projects at this time and asked staff to continue to
monitor the refunding opportunities and keep them apprised.

ADJOURNMENT
Meeting was adjourned at approximately 12:14 p.m.



Commission Staff Report

July 18, 2016

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: July 27, 2016

SUBJECT: June 2016 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Sondra Ainsworthe—=s, § {’_ METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller
Division: Administrative Services

Department: Accounting & Finance

N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members | X

Alameda Municipal Power

Bay Area Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley
City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville
City of Santa Clara

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland

' Truckee Donner PUD

Other

If other, please specify.

Place an X in the box next to the applicable Member(s) above.

SR: 174:16



June 2016 Financial Report (Unaudited)
July 18, 2016
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

NOTICE:
The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will

be approved at the July 27, 2016 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is a
summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman's call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will upon
request make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited June 2016 financial reports are also
included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

The Financial report will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

m HOWARD

General Manager

Attachments:

SR: 174:16



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements
(Unaudited)

For the Month of June 2016

Operations:
Geothermal $ 1,200,908
Hydroelectric 2,529,353
CT#1 Combustion Turbines 90,538
CT#2 STIG 512,144
Lodi Energy Center : 3,205,025
NCPA Operating 19,391,359

Total $ 26,929,327




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

GENERATION RESOURCES

NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric
Other Plant Cost
Debt Service (Net)

Annual Budget Cost

Geothermal
Other Plant Cost
Debt Service (Net)

Annual Budget Cost

Combustion Turbine No. 1

Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)
Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges
Other Plant Cost
Debt Service (Net)

Annual Budget Cost

Lodi Energy Center
Fuel
Other Plant Cost
Debt Service (Net)

Annual Budget Cost

Member Resources - Energy
Member Resources - Natural Gas
Western Resources

Market Power Purchases

Load Aggregation Costs -1SO
Net GHG Obligations

TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator

Grid Management Charge
Wheeling Access Charge
Ancillary Services

Other Charges

PERCENT OF

YEAR ELAPSED
100%
This Actual Year FY 2016
Month . To-Date Budget % Used
1,010,443 § 11,926,933 $ 13,204,025 90%
2,494,303 37,267,735 37,934,653 98%
3,504,746 49,194,668 51,138,678 96%
3,325,794 27,695,944 27,368,698 101%
425,744 5,108,929 5,108,929 100%
3,751,538 32,804,873 32,477,627 101%
647,150 3,033,533 2,877,315 105% (a)
73,332 775,695 953,150 81%
182,043 1,927,237 1,798,534 107%  (b)
473,293 5,679,515 5,679,515 100%
728,668 8,382,447 8,431,199 99%
1,644,590 23,443,242 49,851,536 47%
1,973,362 23,209,519 19,739,576 118%  (¢)
2,167,729 26,411,441 26,440,994 100%
5,785,681 73,064,202 96,032,106 76%
3,951,050 39,009,718 39,011,876 100%
301,457 6,030,464 5,748,516 105%  (d)
5,060,342 28,402,568 29,537,384 96%
2,089,143 32,621,792 42,915,828 76%
16,936,448 180,952,829 238,603,172 76%
- 4,427,000 3,029,825 146%  (e)
42,756,223 457,924,094 549,803,526 83%
332,652 3,483,974 3,393,692 103%
7,118,065 78,607,583 70,278,323 112% i)
456,954 2,875,891 1,419,670 203%  (9)
(769,231) (2,660,089) 920,067 -289%
7,138,440 82,307,359 76,011,752 108%




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation
Regulatory Representation
Western Representation
Member Support Services
Judicial Action

Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs
Contract Admin, Interconnection Sves & External Affairs
Green Power Project :
Gas Purchase Program
Market Purchase Project

Energy Risk Management
Settlements

Integrated Systems Support
Participant Pass Through Costs
Shared Services Pass Through
Prospective Member

TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST

LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales
Load Aggregation Energy Sales
Ancillary Services Sales
Transmission Sales
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income

NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS

(c) Variance due to unbudgeted CA ISO energy purchases. .

(d) MWh scheduled 131% of budget.

MWh range.

(h) Variance due to unbudgeted meter replacement costs.

PERCENT OF

(i) LEC forced outage 2/6/16 to 3/2/16. LEC at 67% of budgeted generation at 6/30/16.

(e) Purchases made several months in advance. Purchases for July and August are included in this amount.

(j) Market prices down due to increased hydro and solar generation and mild temperatures.

(a) Variance due to unbudgeted fuel costs. Fuel costs related to additional generation are offset by increased revenues.

(b) Variance due to higher than budgeted generation. Costs related to additional generation are offset by increased revenues.

YEAR ELAPSED
100%
This Actual Year FY 2016
Month To-Date Budget % Used
240,581 1,663,291 1,821,212 91%
92,633 721,756 767,394 94%
80,300 557,083 672,956 83%
36,816 382,876 459,903 83%
21,315 515,001 745,000 69%
- 609,875 4,914,022 5,585,170 88%
209,832 2,118,644 2,478,635 85%
24,296 302,726 403,758 75%
89,162 808,587 1,052,202 77%
661 6,692 36,418 18%
5,642 56,649 69,182 82%
7,671 79,946 114,093 70%
7,123 193,396 204,512 95%
37,103 504,011 667,611 75%
107,076 264,030 532,705 50%
363,470 1,549,365 1,444,264 107%  (h)
- 36,404 - N/A
663 3,027 - N/A
1,934,219 14,677,506 17,055,015 86%
51,828,882 554,908,959 642,870,293 86%
6,770,528 80,918,643 118,904,279 68% (i)
12,116,657 129,312,994 178,771,257 72% ()
461,598 5,794,645 4,078,239 142%
9,198 110,376 110,376 100%
3,811,819 18,205,041 16,003,668 114%
23,169,800 234,341,699 317,867,819 74%
28,659,082 $ 320,567,260 $ 325,002,474 99%

(f) Budget variance caused by the December through April outage of SVP's high voltage facility which resulted in increased market purchases.

(9) Ancillary services requirements increased two to three times. Budgeted price per MWh were $5-$10 while actuals were in the $15-$20 per




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

‘ " UNAUDITED
|
June 30,
2016 2015
ASSETS (in thousands)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 48,174  § 45,593
Investments 21,977 24,067
Accounts receivable
Participants - 24
Other 495 2,127
Interest receivable 101 86
Inventory and supplies - at average cost 9,062 8,149
Prepaid expenses ) 1,117 1,455
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 80,926 81,501
RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 56,629 57,586
Investments 155,307 146,922
Interest receivable 318 - 261
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 212,254 _ 204,769
ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service 1,500,807 1,500,076
Less: accumulated depreciation (911,976) (881,412)
588,831 618,664
Construction work-in-progress ) 106 44
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 588,937 618,708
OTHER ASSETS .
Regulatory assets - 250,002 249,659
Unused vendor credits 55 -
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS ' 250,057 249,659
TOTAL ASSETS 1,132,174 1,154,637
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt 54,348 62,114
Pension contribution 9,093 5,310
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 63,441 67,424

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 1,195,615 8§ 1,222,061




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
. AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
June 30,
2016 2015
LIABILITIES : (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 22,426 $ 23,462
Member advances 993 993
Operating reserves ) 17,342 21,185
Current portion of long-term debt 37,250 35,615
Accrued interest payable 11,402 11,969
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 89,413 93,224
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability 57,774 57,260
Operating reserves and other deposits 135,559 126,185
Interest rate swap liability 22,261 16,535
Long-term debt, net . 776,982 816,936
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 992,576 1,016,916
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,081,989 1,110,140
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 79,200 - 76,984
Pension earnings 6,599 4,946
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 85,799 81,930
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (62,125) (60,971)
Restricted 67,711 64,688
Unrestricted 22,241 26,274
TOTAL NET POSITION 27,827 29,991

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,195,615 § 1,222,061




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

SALES FOR RESALE
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL SALES FOR RESALE

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance expenses

Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

OTHER (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Years Ended June 30,

2016

2015

(in thousands)

326,115 $ 287,845
124,544 136,042
450,659 423,887
182,556 153,033
69,035 90,617
83,297 60,139
30,645 31,140
22,074 21,659
17,195 22,084
404,802 378,672
45,857 45215
(48,454) (44,885)
2,315 1,429
6,056 5,196
(40,083) (38,260)
342 (2,292)
(8,279) (6,905)
(2,163) (2,242)
29,990 32,233
27,827 $ 29,991




S19°661°1 §  €c6 ISl S ¥b6'S §  0£6°9€ - $ 965 1<k $ v 9LS by §  6V6rEY $ ¥6T L8
[ €606 - - - - - LSTT 160CS -

€606 £60°6 - - - - - - - -
3rEYS - - - - - - LSTT 160°CS -
PLITEL'] 0€8Ty1 pp6's 0€6°9€ - 965°1€p £0v'T 61€TY 85878 y62'L8
L50%05T v18°9§ 5 - © 85161 - LLOET T10'651 100T
sS - - - - - - - - [33
200'05T y18'9§ - - (9) 8S1°61 - LLO'EL ¢10%6s1 9%6'1
L£6'88S 908°C 997 - S 9ZT'ILE 81T 788°0C 956°08 1 899°0p
901 3 - - - 101 = - - -
1£8'88S 108°C 99T - 9 STI'ILE 821C 788'02 956051 899°0p
(9L6°116) (€T3 (1) - (TeL’s) reezs) (AT D) (br6°er) (086vT} (111°82%)
L08'00S°T 6vT's LLS - 9EL'L [39x44 9743 97879 9€6°'€6€ GLL'39S
vsTele Z0E'9L - 81T°1T - £35°6C - 658°C £08°LS 68Y'ST
81 301 - - - [73 - 91 601 €9
LOESST TTE'TS - 69981 - TI9'LL - oLE'y pr6'Ty 06£'61
62995 TL8'ET - 6v5C - 6Y6'L - €LYl 0sLp1 9£0%
976°08 806°9 8L9°S TIL'ST - 62951 SLT 105T £80°ST 9€161
- (16£7€9) 105 8TTS1 - I8FEl [CR) TEST 9LLTEL 70871
LITL $9€ 91 - - 20T 11 L (434 |§24
7906 - - - - 6v8°1 zor'l w9 6L0°1 060
101 oy - 6€ - 44 - - - -

(¥4 b . - [947 - ‘ - - - T
LL61T LLE1T - - - - - - - -
pLISY $ 698'Ly $ 1€ $ - - $ 1L $ 1 1 $ - $ 1

pauiquody >u:ow< SAVIAIRS - uolssjwisuely, AUQ 'ON fEliciel >m‘.o:m MO ON saniioey o_k«ov_vohv>m [eulisyjoany
LYo JqUIB]N % mod uoIsSjusue1], IpoT 1D _ﬁ_nsU
ﬁuum_uomm< _uummr_ounnm U—&E:E
SHOUNOSTI NOISSTASNYUL %% ONILVIENHD
9107 ‘0¢ dung

UOIRIQUION Ul PTRUIITE
SAOMNOSAY 40 SMOTILNO ATINAIAA ANY SIASSY TVIOL

SAANOSTY 40 SMOTILNO ATTIHAHA TV.LOL
UOIINGUIUOD UOISUIJ
1q3p 3o FuIpuNjal Uo 1500 §S90XY
SHEOYNOSTY 40 SMOTALOO ANNNAIAA

SLEASSY TYLOL

SLHASSY YHHLO TV.1OL
SHPAID JOPUDA PasnUfy
syasse L1ojg[ngay

SLASSY YHHLO

LNVTd ORILOHTE TV.LOL
ssardosd-ur-y10Mm uorpdNISUOY

uoneaidap pajenuINddL 1S5
DIIAIIS Ul ucm—n— Q03[
LNVId ORILOATH

SLASSY AELOTYLSH TV.LOL
9]qRAIR0 152.93U]
SIUAUNSIAUL
syuafeainba yses pue yse)
SLHASSY q410MLSTd

SLASSY LNTMAND TV.IOL
xSweagoxd 1ayto pue Lousy woy ong

sasuadxa predarg
1500 aFeraae je - saqddns pue Lrojuaauy
9[qBAISDAI 1SA12UT
SIPYID
9]qBAIDIAI 5IUNOIDY
SJUDUIISIAUY
sjuajeainbs yseo pue yse)
SLASSY LNTND

(poprwo 5,000)

SNOILVIOJIOD YAMOd AILVIDOSSY ANV

AIDNIOV JIMOd VINIOAI'TYD NITHLION

NOILISOd LAN A0 INHWALVLS ONINITINOD

NOLLVIARIOANI TVIDNVNIL YIHLO



S19°561°1 $ £T6ISI vv6'S 0£6'9€ $ 965 IEy § €0pC 9LS b §  6V6bEY $ 6TLS
178°LT L09°1 £LS°E 9361 671°€ (zel) pel €188 Lb9'8
A7 L09°1 8051 9361 7556 () 61 (LL0T) 958°L
11L°L9 - $90°C - OLL'L - TL0's LLE'SY LE1'8
(sz1'29) - - - (€15°€1) - (6£8°9) (Lev've) (ove'L)
6618 [ 997 - 908°LY S8TT SLO' 750t 1L5°0T
6659 6659 - - - - - - -
002'6L syl'e 992 - 908°Lt $82'T SLO‘T 50y 1L5°02
636°180°1 [T S0l VY6 vE 179°08€ 0ST LLEEY bT0°CTy 9L0'8S
9L5'T66 8LOVEL €06°1 LSTIT 9pSLSE - LSEBE 60L7T6E 9TL'9¥
T869LL - - - 16L'1S€ - LSE'8E 078°sSE v10°1E
192'te - - - - - - 197z -
665'SEl POE9L €061 LST1T SSL'S - - 829'%1 [4VA4
PLL'LS PLLLS - - - - - - -
E1¥'68 V69 70T L89°€El S60°€T 0ST 020°S SIE6T 0SET1
or'EL - - - 1LEL - L€ 3TY'8 99L
0sT'Le - - - 0566 - 0L9'e 050'0T 08s°¢
THELL - - - 88201 05T €IS 0sT 140°9
£66 - 20T - = - - - 16L
oTh'Te $ vev'e - L89°€l $ 98t $ - - $ L8 [JEAA
vUE_QEOU >Q:mm< mmu_Zom ISSII 1L 1L JURD %mb:ﬂ OGO “ON mo_::u«h umbuu_vo.__u%m _NE._QEOUU
peitile) ._unEoE 7% mod _vol_ L0 _m«_QmU
pajerossy _uumd:u‘_:nm 0?:::2
SHOUNOSHY NOISSTNSNVYL 7% ONILYYINHD
9707 ‘0¢ dung

NOILISOd LIN ANV SHOMNOSHTY 40
SMOTINI GERNYHEIAJ ‘SHILITIEYIT TYLOL
NOILISOd LN TV.LOL
pajousaluf)
paromsay
s1085¢ [eRdes uy JUOUIISOAUL JON
NOILISOd LN

SHOMNOSTY JO SMOTINI ATIFIHA TV.LOL
sunues uotsuag
sipa1n Kojengay
STOENOSTY 40 SMOTINI ATIYIIIA

SHILITIGVITIVIOL

SHILITIAVIT LNTDIND-NON TV.LOL

19U 4g9p uLR)-guoy

Anpiqery dems a7e1 j5a193u]

syisodap Jayjo puk saalasal SuneladQ

Knpiqen| uoisuad 0N
SHILITIEVIT.LNTHINO-NON

SHILITEVIT LNTNND TVLOL

ajqeAed 1s9193U) parUOIY
19op wie3-guo] Jo uonod Jusuny
saatasal Suneladg
SOOURAPE JOQUIDIAL
ajqeded sjunosoy
SHILITIEYIT LNTIIND

SHLLITEVIT

(pam1wo s,000)
SNOLLVIOJY0D YAMOd AILVIOOSSY ANV
AONITOV YIMOI VINTOAITVO NUAHLION

NOILISOd LAN A0 INHWHLVLS ONINIFINOD

NOILVINHOANI TVIONVNIL STHLO




UONBUIQUICD Ul PIRUIITE 4

LT8LT $ L0971 $ €S $ 9361 § - $ 6vic s (zen $ pTl . § ELS® [ZE] 3 Ppapue polad ‘NOLLISOd LAN
066'6T 08 161°S 18L°L - TSy (65%) 91 S60°L 809°S 182k jo SuluuiBeq ‘NOLLISOd LAN
(£91°7) LSl (819°D) (s6L°S) - (£8¢'1) 1243 (8€) 8LL'I 6€0°C NOILISOd LAN NI (ESVHIOHA) ASVIIONI
(622°8) (569) (£L0%) (vsL) - 98z 6€€ B (€LE'E) (L107) . SINVJIDILNVI OL SANNITY
(423 (99p) - - 91 L9LT - (evs‘D) s29 (850°1) SLNNOWY HTEYITAQDTE TINLNL

(£80°0) 066 95T 36€ - (Lze1n) 6€ (c0z'1) (6£€87) (L68) SHANAATY (SESNEIXE) YEHLO TY.LOL
950'9 61T 6T - - €Sy 6€ 9L [33 [1%3 0
SIET 1LL LE 86€ - £33 - 3¢ SOF Tie aWodu} 1Sa1R3U]

(bsy'sy) - - - - (toz'9l) - (£00'7) (0LL82) (08v*1) osuadxa Isa10iu]

SANNAATI (SASNIIXH) YTHLO
LS8'Sh 8691 661°1 (6€t°c) o0 168°S (B3] 669T S93°TE 1107 SHNNIATE ONILYIHJIO LEN
708'v0Y (e95'1) 6L8°81 1€8%9¢C 91 €129 OpEE 0667 01t 988°0¢ SHSNHIXH ONILYYEdO TY.LOL
- - (€9) - - T 16 L9 061 (z£s) «au ‘saseyaund (sojes) Auudutoosaruy
S61°L1 (rs8'D) 1€L°9 - - L81Y SLS 9§ LO1e €l6'c |esaual pue dANEASIIUPY
PLO'CT - . $6 - - 1¥8°L T6h' 788 LEB'E LT6'L sosuadxo aouBuAIUIEIY
SP9'0€ 162 123 - 9l 109°p1 8Ll 4 kA4 Siv'e 868°C uopeioaidoq
L6T'E8 - ¥ TL0'18 - 00$ (8) 143 L18 088 UOISSIWSUBLY
SE0°69 - 8L0°C1 0£0°9 - 910°0¢ 970t 1we't pr8e 008'%1 suonessdQ
955281 - - 6TLLLL - 128 - - - - Jamod paseyoing
SESNHIXT ONILYIEIO
659°0S¥ Sel 8L0°0C T6E 65T ¥01'89 68T°€ 689°L SLOPS L68°LE ATVSTI Y04 STTVS TVIOL

YrSHTL - - €98°LE - 6163 [53 62 66691 €08°6C Aued-pagy 410

ST19ze §  Sgl $ 8L0°02 $ 6T5°12T $ - $ szi'st $ 8ILT $ 09 $ 9L0'LE $ ¥60'8 $ swedonieq
ATYSTL YO STTVS

pauiquio) KouaSy SIVIAIDG [T 1], uoss| 11, 191U AF1oug auQ ‘oN OL1193[901pAH [IIETGETS)
Yo JoquIDN % Jomog 1po1 10
PpaieIossy paseyaing
STOUNOSTA NOISSINSNV AL % ONILY YINID
9107 ‘0€ ouny papuy Jedx oY) 10§

(panwo s,000)

SNOILVIOJdIOD YIAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNTOV 4AMOd VINIOHITVD NUTHLION

NOILISOd LAN NI SHONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SANNIATI 40 INTWALVLS ONINIFINOD

NOILVIARIOANI TVIDONVNIA YHTHILO




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
‘ June 30, 2016

| Status _ Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT ' $ 494,895
PAST DUE:

1-30

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 494,895

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific.
NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed.

AR FY 2016.xIsxJun Rpt 2016



A PUBLIE AGENCY

NCPA

NDRTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

July 18, 2016
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: July 27, 2016

| SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for the Month Ended June 30, 2016

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth &MMETHOD OF SELECTION:
! Treasurer-Controller N/A
l

Division: Administrative Services If other, please describe:

Department: Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members | X City of Lodi City of Ukiah
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland
City of Biggs City of Redding Truckee Donner PUD
City of Gridley City of Roseville Other

City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify.

Place an X in the box next to the applicable Member(s) above.

SR: 175:16



Treasurer's Report for the ME June 30, 2016
July 18, 2016
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash - At month end cash totaled $40,873,129 of which approximately $243,179 was applicable
to Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $15,804,639 to Debt Service and $24,825,311 to

Operations and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $241,210,323 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $242,400,059.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 0.906% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 0.918%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $132,809,000. June maturities totaled $64 milion and monthly receipts totaled
$36 million. During the month $40 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90 day T-Bills decreased by 4 basis point (from 0.31%
to 0.27%) and rates on one year T-Bills decreased 22 basis points (from 0.67% to 0.45%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of June 30, 2016 are in
compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month's cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The Treasurer’s report will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.
Respectfully submitted,

S

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 175:16



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

JUNE 30, 2016

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE | : 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS | | 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Cash & Investment Balance

June 30, 2016
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
NCPA FUNDS '
Operating 23,811,008 66,597,857 90,408,865 32.05%
Special Deposits 998,199 1 998,200 0.35%
Construction 16,104 4,855,027 4,871,131 1.73%
Debt Service 15,804,639 21,661,880 37,466,519 13.28%
Special & Reserve 243,179 148,095,558 148,338,737 52.59%
40,873,129 241,210,323 282,083,452 100.00%
242,400,059

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.




Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
June 30, 2016
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE/
OPS/CONSTR (NOTE B) (NOTE A) OPS/CONSTR (NOTE B) FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS

Operating $ 35,030,092 $ 32,271 $ 8,062,130 $ (14,722,242) $ (7,780,316) $ (11,983,103) $ 8,638,832
Special Deposits 910,686 3 - (7,080,013) - 6,407,264 237,940
Construction - - - - - - -
Debt Service - 280 24,475,476 (21,065,439) - 5,324,508 8,734,825
Special & Reserve 64,837 158,639 31,564,610 - (32,039,417) 251,331 -

$ 36,005615 $ 191,193 $ 64,102,216 §$ (42,867,694) $ (39,819,733) § - $ 17,611,597

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

June 30, 2016
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS :
Operating $ 7,780,316 $ (8,062,130) $ (3,174) $ - $ - $ (284,988)
Special Deposits : - - - - -
Construction - - (704) - - (704)
Debt Service (24,475,476) 7,585 - - (24,467,891)
Special & Reserve 32,039,417 (31,564,610) (4,009) - - 470,798
$ 39,819,733 $ (64,102,216) $ (302) $ - $ - (24,282,785)
Less Non- Cash Activity
302

. Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ (24,282,483)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.




Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

June 30, 2016
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD

OVERALL COMBINED 0.906% 0.918%
OPERATING FUNDS: 0.897% 0.858%
PROJECTS:

Geothermal 1.120% 1.117%

Capital Facilities 0.989% 0.983%

Hydroelectric 1.075% 1.053%

Lodi Energy Center 0.937% 0.880%

INTEREST RATES
1.50
‘ 1.25
KEY INTEREST RATES 1.00 42 -
PRIOR 0.75 Hi
CURRENT YEAR 0.50
Fed Fds (Ovrnight) 0.40% 0.12% 025 e R
T-Bills (90da.) 0.27% 0.01% 0.00 +— . ; ;
Agency Disc (90da.) 0.36% 0.09%
T-Bills (1yr.) 0.45% 0.27%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 0.46% 0.28%
T-Notes (3yr.) 0.71% 1.03% —+—TBILL(90DA)  —=—FEDFUNDS
—a—TBILL (IYR) 3 TNOTE (3YR)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
June 30, 2016
: 0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10
" Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
US Government Agencies $ 16,062 $ 7,526 $865 $651 $ 14,538 $ 127,438 $ 5371 $ 172,451 65.14%
US Bank Trust Money Market 5,593 5,593 2.11%
Commercial Paper 5,000 5,000 1.89%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 50,104 50,104 18.92%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 31,597 31,697 11.93%
U.S.Treasury Bill 0.00%
Certificates of Deposit 10 10 0.00%
Total Dollars $108,366 $7,526 $865 $651 $14,538 $127,438 $5,371 $264,755 100.00%
Total Percents 40.93% 2.84% 0.33% 0.25% 5.49% 48.13%  2.03% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in
a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested
nightly in fully collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.




wd zg:y 9102/50/L0
000'00€' 9e€9e SANGOVELE 9lb'00E") [ szr'l 0202/92/S0  000'00E'L 9102/80/90  00S'L 000°00€"L 208N N UeoT swoH |elapay
20v've0's 9ve9zT ZTAZOOSELE bPL'TCL'S 0EY'L eve'L 6L0Z/9ZILL  YOELPO'S §L0Z/82/80  0SL'L 000'286' o08an By {euoneN |eseped
000'92€'6 04292 Lg143eeLe  881'9LE'6 ozr'L 802'L 610Z/22/0L  000'9.£'6 SL0z/ee/oL 0Tyl 000'9.£'6 o08n 1palD wued |esspay
yLE'YE6'S 88192 ¥LAODSELE  LOL'260'9 osv'L 6.8 gLoz/Le/LL  10L'600'9 vioz/eere,  se9'k 000'026'S o08n i [euoneN lesepay
000'G0€"Z Trese P1SO3EELE  +BSG'G0E'L 0220 6EE £102/S0/90  000'G0E‘L 21L02/50/Z 1 0LL0 000'G0€"2 208N Wpas) wied [eiepad
SIp'292'e 98192 2HZOOSELE  165'692'E 020 €62 2102/02/%0  99v'19Z'e vLOZIOLZL  0S.°0 000'e9z's 208N BI |euonen |esepagy
0 15002 LG00LSAS 0 0000 L 0 €L02/L0/20 0000 0 asn jueg sn
0 6100 6L00LSAS 0 2000 L 0 €L02/L0/L0 2000 0 o08n oD 40 sjueg uojun
£02'28'cT 20002 0000/SAS €02'2.8'ce 290 A £02'2.8'€T €L0Z/L0/L0  29Y0 €02'2/8'eT Ellal wiseAu| Aoueby 8007
aAlasay BugeladQ jessusn
ole'cLz'oz  $ ovg'apeoz ¢ £62°L zzol 620'682°'0c  $ vreL §6£'052'02  $ abelaAy pue [ejoL pung
000'620'S L2292 SHELOVELE 0.£'920°G 00L'b 08s'l 020Z/82/04  000'5/0'S §L0Z/8C/I0L 0041 000'60'G o08n I Ueo SWoH |eiepad
000'860'S 0e€ge S6ro9sele +2g'lol's 0se’t vzt 6L02/8Z/0L  000'860'S 9102/8z/v0  0GE'L 000'860'G 208N By |euoneN |elepay
G/6's88'e 18192 PLAQDSELE  LSE'Or0'Y 69¢°L 618 810Z//2/LL  0E9'000'% viogsuzL  szo'L 000'296'e 008N BI [euolieN [esepad
000015y £2292 ZISSYOELE 006'9LS'Y 0001 599 8L0Z//Z/v0  000'0LS'y Gloz/leivd  000'L 000°0LS'y o04an eg Ue0T SWOH |esepad
0 85002 8500/SAS 0O 0000 L 0 £10Z/L0/.0 0000 0 asn jueg sn
0 £200L €Z00LSAS 0 S000 L 0 €L02/10/20 5000 0 o08n oJlleD 40 yueg uotun
S6£'509'L 22002 ZZO0LSAS 56€'G09'L FA=T 0] L S6E'509'L €L0Z/L0/L0  Z9V0 S6E'509'L Elkal wisaau] Aouaby |es0n
Juno2oy Buloueeg vdos
wy'iee  $ wy'iez § £9Y°0 1 y'iee $ £9v'0 vz $ abeiaAy pue [ejoL pung
wr'iee Sb00. SPOOLSAS pb'Lee AT 4] i b LET €102/L0/20  29v°0 phLee wisaAu| Aouaby 200
100y uoldny HHOD ddiN
2€2'2e8'68  § 60L've0'0L $ 891°0 7% 9vy'z98'69  § 0150 865'6vL'69  § abeiaAy pue [ejo[ pund
000'86€'e LE€9Z TAGBOVELE 80P'86E'E 009'} 18g'L 0z0Z/6Z/0L  000'86€E'E oLoz/6eIv0 - 009 000'86€'E 208N W\ UeoT] swoH |esepe4
G61'€56'6 1292 Loavazele sey'iviol osv'L €90'L 61L0Z/0€/SO  006'€86'6 GLOZ/BO/90  0SL'L 000'028'6 oo8an N UeoT] 8WoH [eiapad
6E1L'529'E 08292 ord43eele 8.9'899'c 00€'L 118 8L0z/BLILL  8V6'veo'e sloz/teiel o6z 000'929'e 008n Wpal) wied |e1epa
0c0‘0b 6620€ 6620€ 00004 0500 9 910Z/L0//0  000'0} 9L02/L0/v0  0S0°0 00004 asn jueg sn
900'118'€2 05002 0S00LSAS 900°'L18'€e 1000 L 900°L18'e2 €102/0€/90 1000 900°'L18'€C asn sueg sn
951'98/2'L 1002 ¥LOOLSAS 9G1'98.2°/ 2000 1 951'982°L €L02/L01L0 2000 951'98/2'2 208n oje) Jo yueg uoun
9ev'ave'ol 00002 0000/SAS 9ep'spe'olL 9r'0 L 9eY'8re'alL €L02/10/20  Z9v'0 ger'are'al Elial unsanul fousby (20
000'000's 10102 10L0ZSAS 000'000'S 0010 } 000°000'G vL02/9c/LL 00L'0 0000006 asn VN Mueg gn
anjep buifuey # JUBWISBAU| dISND  anfep 18yiep PIBIA funyep ajeq aoud a)eq ajey anjep pajels uelpoIsny f @ajsna] lanssi
Ainb3g 03 skeq Aungep paseyaind aseyaind jsalau|
spuog
Bupesado
9102/0€/90

| abed

Joday sJainseal]

KouaBy Jamod eluiojijes WIDYUON

ATV B0

4011¥D H3IHLY




wd zg:L 9102/50/L0

“Aliapienb ajge|e0 - OINTHA — 9E£9Z# JuaySaAU)

awnhue uayy ‘21/2/9 21qeeD - 6044 — §EE9Z#H JUaLIsaAU]
‘Alsepienb a)qe|eD - YINND - ZEL9ZH JUsWISaAL)
“Apiapenb ajqelieD - DINTHL — LESOZ# JUBWISOAL]
*Aiseienb s|qe|e0 - YWNL - 0CE9Z# JusWisaAy|

‘awAue a|qe||e) - 994 — Z.Z9zZ# JUBW}SaAU|

‘Alsepienb ajqeeg - DWTHA — 1L29z# Juswsaau|
‘awpAue a|qe|(ed - 804 — 0429Z# Justu}saAy|

*AIUO £102/L2/ U0 a|qej|es - DWTHA — £2Z924# usuwsany)
‘awnAue a|qef[eD - G044 - ZPESZ# JUSUASAAU|

910Z/0¢/90 JO SE [eUINOf Ja3.)S [[BM a3 o) saoud piq 10 SjusLuajelg UBIPO)SNY /a9)SNI] Woy saoud Uo paseq s anfep jesiep JusaLng

‘POUIBLL JOBXA UB asn SJ8U30 |je ‘poyjawl ajewixoldde ue asn AJUnjew 0) SYUOW g UBY) SSB| U3IM SJUBLLISBAU]
sadf} jfe usamiaq uosiedwion 1oy siseq e spiaosd 03 Jeah Aep g9g B UO paseq UMOYS S| AjLInjej O} PI3IA Juajealinby puog,

£b0'ses'o9l § '£28'€80°291L § 858°0 619 259'509'991L  § 1680 £va‘ose'agl § :SIVLOL ANVHD
V vee's6L'sL  $ LIV Ivv'sL  § Lol ocs veL'zzz'al § SELL £0Z'61L'9L ¢ abesany pue jejo L pung
000'629'0L GEEIT SH@D3eeLe 229'Li90L 069'L 162'} 1202/20/90  000'629'0} 9L02/20/90 069 000'629'04 208N UpaI) uued [ejopaq
000'29L's 2e€92 GINEDYELE €HS'99L'S 529 68L'L 1202/52/S0  000°29L'S 9l0z/S2IS0  §29') 000'291L's 008n By [euoneN (eispay
000'092'y 2.292 B6OWSIEELE  $80'092'Y 089'L 185'L 020Z/6Z/0}  000'09¢'t §L0z/62/0y  089'L 000'092'? 208n paJ) uued |esepa4
anjep Builien # Jusuijsaauy] dISND  anjep 1axiely PIIA Ajunyely ajeq aslid ajeq ayey an[eA paiels ueIpoIsSnNY f 8visna] lanssj
Ainbg 0} sheq Aunjep paseyoing aseyaung Jsassjuf
puog

7 9bey

9102/0€/90

Hoday sJainsealt

KouaBy Jamod ejuiogijen UIByLON

aA19s9y BuneiadQ |eisuan

ABHIYY ¥3/108 VINYDSITVD HEIHINON,




wd gg:p 9102/50/L0
Z66'26v'C 16192 SWAvALELE 8L8'WYS'T 0gs'} gL'l 6l02/20/0L  6E8'S8Y'Z SL02//2/20  0SZ'L 000'515'2 1asn N UEO] BUWICH [Bispas
98e'lzL'L 8229¢ Loavalele sev'sel’l vl £90'L 6102/0S/S0  6/6'SZL'L S102/20/90  0SL) 000'60L°L Lasn N UB0T BWOH [BJapa,
199y 9AJ9SaY 99118 199d OTO
oss'eol'yl $ zs'99l'yl  § v90'L v19 858'a9L'vL ¢ 8.0t eiEYsLyL § abesany pue [ejo] pund
vZL'6v's 1¥292 SYVIICELE ¥LLI6V'S 158°L SLS'L 0202/v2/180  916'86Y'S Sl0z/8zi80  006'L 000'g8p's 208N UpaID uLed {eiepay
000's98 9vese L€ZEOVELE  9/1'998 vz90 51 9l0z/S0/ZL  000's98 zI0Z/0zizl  S290 000598 208N N UEO"] BUWoH [esspad
£60'82L'y #8092 LIA0DSELE 6P6'STL'Y S£90 95 9102/92/80  695'6ZL'Y vL0zve/l0  SZ90 000'8ZL'y 208N BIN [euoneN eJepa4
0 6500L 6500/SAS 0 0000 ! 0 £102/L0/0 0000 0 asn ueg sn
0 v€00L ¥€00/SAS 0 2000 1 0 €102/L0//0 2000 0 208N ofifeQ Jo ueg uolun
cle'sl9'e 12002 IZ00LSAS €le'elg'e z9v°0 L £1e'e/9'e €L0Z/L0IL0 290 ele'el9'e Elal wisenu| Aousby |gaon
aAl19say Buluoissiwwosag 09s)
000°005'L $ §25'005'y  § 0si'L 8.8 000'008‘t  § osL'L 000°00s°L $ aBieiaAy pue fejo) puns
000005} 20£92 OMBOPELE  §26'005'L osL'L 8.8 8102/9¢/41  000'00S'} 9L02/92/20  0SL'L 0000054 208N N UBo] BWoH [elepe4
0 £9002 £900/SAS 0 0000 ! 0 €102/10/0 0000 0 asn ueg sn
0 S100Z SLO0LSAS 0 2000 L 0 £102/10/0 2000 0 008N oflje jo yueg uoiun
0 z£00L TE00LSAS 0 95€°0 L 0 €10Z/L0/0  95€0 0 el wisauj Aoushy oo
aAl9SaY |e1oadg [euwlIayjoan)
000'6L  $ 000'6.  $ 96€°0 0 998's.  § 06€°0 000'6.  § abelaAy pue [ejo) puny
000'62 26292 LAASSSELE 000'62 96€°0 0 9L02/L0/20  998'8.L 9102//Z1V0  06€0 00062 188n By euoneN [eJepad
92IAI9S 198 VZ1.0Z 099
000'8e’L  $ 000'sle'L  § 98€°0 0 sZe'sle’y  § 0820 ooo'sle’t  $ abelaAy pue |ejo) pung
000'266 £629¢ LAASSSELE 000'266 96€0 0 9L0Z/L0/L0 - $2E'066 9102//Z/L0  06€0 000266 1asn BIN euopeN |esepe
000'92¢ s0£92 SAAVBEELE 000'9ZE S6E0 0 9102/L0/Z0  log'sze 9L02/92/z0  0S€0 000'92¢ 18asn B UB0T BWOH [eiapa4
991AI18G }q9(J BWIBYJ095)
8L’k $ g5e'z/8  § €2L0 1z soc'tie § 5180 000'0.8  $ eBeiany pue [ejof pundg
18118 2ot PNNLVOSLE 858'2.8 zzL0 1z 1102/vZIS0 SOE'L.8 9102//2150  §/8'0 0o0‘028 gsn e UB0 SWOH |eJapad
anjep bullien # JuBLUISaAY| dISND  8nieA 19ytel pIRIA Aunyey ajeQ aolld ajeq ajey anjep pajeis uBIpOJSNY [ @8ISNIL Janss|
Alnbg o3 sheg Runjey paseyaing asetjaing jsateju|
puog
pund uononyjsuod Loz 039
9102/0€/90

Hoday sJainseai]

KouaBy Jamod eluiojijes UisyUoN

ADHIBY 832004 VINSDAIVI MUIHLBON

VAN




6v0'c90'cz  §

wd zg:} 9L02/50/L0

‘Auepenb a|qejjed - YWNL - £££9Z# JUsWiSaAy]
“Apepenb aqej[ed - OWTHL — ZOE9Z# JUaWISaAY|

awy Aue uayy ‘g1/pz/8 8lqe|(eD - €1HA — LbZ9zZ# Jiaw)saAl|

9102Z/0£/90 JO SB [BUINOr }38.4G (e 89U} WoJ) saslxd pig Jo SjusLale)S URIPOISNY jo9)sni | Wolj sasud uo paseq s| anfep Jasep Jualng

‘Poyjew Joexa Ue asn sisyjo j[e ‘poyieiu ajewixoidde ue asn Ajunjews 0) SYIUOW § URYY SSB| UIIM SJUBLUISSAU|
'sadA} ||e usamyaq uosuedwOod 1o} Siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep Go¢ & UO paseq UMoys s) AJnJel O} PISIA JusjeAnbg puog,

‘opLgeL'ee  § L 127) TLL'650'€T  § ozl elLe'zoo'es $ :STVLOL GNYYHD
000'215Y  $ Gee'8ls’l  $ §Z9'L 68l 000°2L5°L  $ 5Z9'L 000°L15°L  § abeiany pue |ejo) pung
000°'2L5"L £££92 SINEDYELE GEE'RIS'L 5z9'L 68.'L 120T/SeIS0 000°LLS'L 9l02/52/50  S29'L 000°L16'L 14asn Bin leuonen |esepay
IUN0JIY ¥SA VYZL0Z 099
8ee'ylo's ¢ 9.8'v88's LY 3233 818'609'c  § SOp'L 000'vze'e  § abelaAy pue (230 pung
anjep buliren # Juaysaau] dISND  enjep joxtep PIRIA Aunyep ajeq 891d ajeq ajey anjep pajels uelpojsny fa83snat lanss)|
AInbg o} sfeqg Ajunyen paseyoing aseyoaind 1saJ3jy|
puog
192y 9AI19S9Y 991A19G 193Q OJD
9102/0€/90

Z abey

Joday sJainseal]

KouaBy 1omod elulojjen WIBLUUON

LIHIGV ¥4 VINBOSTIVI NYIHIEDN,
STEEY eas v {w




wd gg:) 9L0Z/50/L0
0 ¥900L ¥900LSAS 0 0000 L 0 €L02/L0/I20 0000 0 asn jueg sn
0 91002 9L00LSAS 0 2000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 0 08an OJI|ED 40 yueg uolun
0 €002 €€00LSAS O 950 L 0 €10Z/L0/L0  95€°0 0 Elal wisanu| Asusby [eoo
0 €000, 0000.SAS © 11€°0 L 0 €10e/10120  LI£0 0 Ellal wysanu| Aouaby [2a07
aAlesay |ernadg oUpAH
£82'069 $ GE1'259 $ 0501 0sz Z6¢€'6¥9 $ 000'L 000159 $ abetaAy pue [ejo, pung
£€82'059 £5852 00av3ZELE SEL'ESO 0s0°} 0sz L10Z/80/€0  TBE'6Y9 2L0e/60/20  000°) 000459 asn 1N ueo aloy |essped
JUN022Y 8)eqaYy VZ10Z 04pAH
y80'eys's  $ eeY'rLe’s  $ 089’} S6v1 8L'9v5's  § 05’} 000'825's  $ abesany pue [ejo] pung
PBO'EVS'S €429 6ZG33EELE 26V'PLO'S 089'L g6l 020Z/¥0/180  /8L'9YS'S 5L0z/8e/180 0S4 000'825's asn Npal) wied [elepay
V010Z Aisay 991A18g 399 OIpAH
000's99'vL  $ 000'599'PL  § 28¢°0 0 LS9 $ z8€0 000°599'7L  § abelaAy pue [ejo] pund
000'052'LL ¥6292 LAABSSELE  000'0SL'LL 96€°0 0 9L0Z/L0/L0  EVL'OSL'LL 9L02/L2/I\0  06E0 000'0S.'4L lasn By feuoneN (esepad
000'616'2 80€92 SAAVBEELE 000'GL6'C §5€°0 0 9l0Z/L0/L0  6ZYLLE'T 9102/92/c0  0S€0 000'516'C 18sn eg Ueo sWoH [esapay
@o1AIeS 199 0JpAH
vg'ese’s  § 9ez'azo'y  § oLzl £16 svL'e86'c  § ©ogeeL 000'996'c  § abelaAy pue jejol pung
129'8v1'2 00€9Z LJONJ3EELE  ¥BI'POV'T 090} 56 6102/22/10 10505v'2 9102/20/20 05Tl 000'2£¥'2Z asn UpaI) Wied jesepa
9ze'ses’t 68192 vLACOSELE TSS'L9S'L osv'L 628 gLoz/LeILL  bbTiees'L viozielzl  szo'L 000'625'L gasn B [euonieN |esepady
sanijioe [eniu] odpAH
9cz'zzo'rL  § ssy'oso'vl ¢ 0L0°L 198 9gz'zzo'vl  § 00°} 9£z'z29'yL  § abelany pue |ejo) pung
000'02¢'s ove9z SHAED9ELE €E6'Gee's ose’L 112 6L0Z/0E/CL  000'0Ze'S 9L0T/0e/90  0SE'L 000°0ze's 008n By jeuoneN |esepad
000'122'e ¥0£92 omigoveLe  Lzl'zee's osL'L 8.8 8L0z/9z/L L 000'L22'e 9L0z/ezIc0 05LL 000°Lz2'e oo08an WA ueo swoH [elspad
000'g66'S 6E€9Z 08VEOVELE LSS'V66'E 0560 82L 8l02/62/90  000'€66'C 910Z/62/90 0560 000'€66'S o08n WA UeoT sWoH |eJepagy
0 25002 ZS00/SAS 0 0000 L 0 €10Z/L0/20 0000 ] asn yueg sn
0 1£002 LE00LSAS O 2000 L 0 €102/10/1L0 2000 0 308N ojijeD Jo yueg uoiun
9€2'880'C 8200L 8Z00/SAS 9€2'880'C 29v0 L 9€2'880'C €L0Z/L0/20  T9V'0 9£2'880'C Eial wjsau| Aousby (eoo
anjep m:_?_._mu # jusaugsaauy disno anjep jaxiey PIBIA >«_‘_3ums_ ajeq asld ajeq ayey sn|ep pejels uelpoisnyd \ 29)sn | Janss)
Atnb3 0 sheg Aumep paseyaing aseyoing 1saseu|
puog
oipAH aniasay "Aa( jeyden
9102/0€/90

| abed

uoday stainseal]

fouaby Jamod eluiojijed UIBYHON

AINIOY BIA0E VIREOINVD :E:.Ea&

VdO N4

PRETE Ty




wd gg:y 9102/50/L0

“Apsapienb a|qejied - YWNA — 0p£9z# Juswysaau
“Alapenb a|qejeQ - OWTHA — 6£€9Z# JusLWSaAU|
*Apapend a|qe(jeD - SIWTHL — C0E9ZH IUBWISBAL|

910Z/0£/90 4O SE [eLINO[ Jool)G =m>>. 2y} woJy seoud piq J0 SJULLIER)IS UBIPOISND /83)Sh1] WO} Saoud U paseq s anfep Jaje Jusung

‘POYJAW J0BXS U 3SN SIaU10 |[B ‘poyjaws ajewixoidde ue asn AJLINJEW 0} SYIUOW § URY) SSB| UM SJUSLIISIAU|
i ‘sadA} || usamjaq uosiiediwod Jo) Siseq e apiroad o} seak Aep gog B U0 paseq umoys s| AjLIMely O PISIA JUsjeAInby puog,

8ET'T66'VY  $ zEBZIV'SY  § £50°L 952 €69'6L6'v  § S.0'L 9e2’096'vy  $ :STV.LOL ANVHD
! 88z'L20'y  § le6‘zoz'y  $ £9€°2 6002 . L9s'9z0'y  $ B5ET 000'820'r  $ abelaAy pue [ejo pung
§10',26'c 25852 zaavalele b0l 0822 220'T Z20ZIELL0  ZET'9Te'S 2102180120 SIET 000'826'S 4asn W UEOT BWOH (21epa
\ €/2'00} vbeoe 62533€ELE  059'20L 089’} G6b'L 0202/70/80  6ZE'00L SL0Z/82/I80  0SL')L 000'00} asn 1pas) wie (esepad
. vysa zLoz olpAH
. 000'008'L § §25'008't ¢ 0sl'L 8.8 000'005'L ¢ 0511 o00'00s‘L  § abelaAy pue [ejo pund
]
000'005'L £0E9Z OMIBOYELE §25°005'L 051t 8.8 8102/9z/LL  000'00S'L 9102/92/20  0SL'L 000°005L 208n I UeoT SWwoH [esepad
anjep Bujluen # Juawiysaauy| diSND  enjep jaxiey PIOIA Ajunjey ajeq aoug ajeq a1y anjep pajels UBIpOISNY f 29)SNU | lanss|
Anba oysfkeg  Aumen pasetjaing eseyoing ysa193)
Jpuog
aAIasaYy |e1oadg oIpAH
: 9102/0€/90

AJNIVY H3/NDS VINYOSIIVD HBIHIUON

J0doy sJainseal)

fouaby Jjamod BluiojijeD UIsyuoN
Z abeg




&

wd 2¢:1 910Z/50/L0

9102/0£/90 4O SE [BUINOI J23NS [[BM 28U} W0y saoLid pig Jo Sjuswiejelg UBlpoIshy jaa)sniy, oy saoud Uo paseq S| anjep josuel Juaung

‘POYIBW JOBXS UR 8Sn SI9}0 [[e ‘pouiaul sjewixoidde Ue asn AJUNJEW OF SUYJUOW § UBY) SSB| Y)IM SJUSLUISAAL]
'sadA} ||e usamjeq uosuedwiod 1o} siseq e apjrold o} Jeak Aep gg¢ & Uo paseq umoys st AJINJely 03 PISIA JuUajeAinbs puog,

L8828y § ‘1e8'sze'y $ £86'0 74°] L1g'6e8'y  § 686°0 000°L¥8'y 'SIVLOL ANVHD
(341474 W £5e'8zs'L  § ove'e zz0z oEv'ibr'y  $ S8 000'evy'L  $ aBeieAy pue [e}0] puny
civ'swy'L Sv8ST 28avaele £ge'8es’t e’ 220'C 220Z/ELL0 OSV'LvbL ZLOZELZ0  SlET 000'Sb'L asn 1N UB0T BWOH (Bepay
OAI9SOY 9AS JqoQ "oed 'den
sie'96e'e  $ pav'iee's  § S0P°0 6¢ 180'z68's $ 66£°0 000'g6c'e  § abelaAy pue |30 puny
858'LLY 11€92 1PV88SELE  LO6'LLY G50 Le 9L0Z/L0/80  9zv'Lib 9102/62/180  6¥E'0 00022y 18sn By |euoneN fesepady
££8'2LY 60£92 LbYBBSELE  106'CLY alr'o Le 9L0Z/L0/80  ¥SL'TLY 91L02/92/20  OLv'0 000°€Ly 1asn Bi (euoneN jetepad
905'905'L 1092 6ZZ96EELE  $08'90S'L 9zyo 8z 9L02/6Z/.0  ¥66'E0S'L 9L02/60/120  0Zv'0 000°208'L Lasn 1N UE0T BUWOH felspay
veg'zIy 56292 6ZZ96EELE 686'TLY 150 8¢ oLoz/eTIL0  TLE'LLY 9L02/L2I0  0SP'0 000'€2y Lasn 1N uB0T BWoH |elepad
288'2.Y 12892 SZZYBEELE 686'ZLY vZeo 8z olL0e/6z/l0  1092Ly 8l0Z/S2ZI0  BLE0 000'€2t 18sn Bg UE0T SWOH (elepad
anjep buiAuen # JualuysaAu} dISND  anjep 1axiely PISIA Aunjep ajeq aolg ajeq oy an|ep paels uelpojsny f aaysni] lanssj
Anb3 0} sheq Aunep paseyaind aseyoing pELIEHTT
Lpuog
aIAlag 399 sani|ioed dep
9102/0€/90

| abed

Aouahy Jamod Blulojijen ulsyloN

poday s Jainseal}

AJNIGY Y3/ VINEOITYD NUIHINON




wd zg:1 9102/50/20

225'1L5'8  § 904'665'8 1zZe'L oLLl e8L'zls's  § Lz zzg'ols'e  $ aBeleAy pue fejol pung
000'09E'Y L€€9¢ 17993eLE SLL'TIEY 659'L 68.'L LZ0z/5T/IS0  000'09E'y 910Z/80/50  099'L 000'09'y asn Wpal) uied [eiopad
002'0LL'Y 9e19z €ZNODSELE 605°18L'Y 1160 47 £102/82/80  096'LLLY 7LOZIOE/S0 *  §.8°0 000'0L'y asn B feuoneN felepa4
zeg'oy S006. S006/SAS ZZ8'Oy 00L'0 1 zeg'oy €10Z/10//0 0010 zea'oy asn IsnuL yueg sn
pun4 ¥SAa 010¢ L# onss| 537

€ze'sve $ £26'8v¢ $ 00L'0 l €ze'spe § 00L'0 €ee'spe § abelaAy pue ejol pung
£26'8YE zL06L TLOBLSAS £Z6'ave 00L'0 1 £26'8vE €102Z/L0/0 0010 £26'8YE asn snu sued sn
pund sa 90102 ¢# enss| 931

osz'vey  $ osz'vey  $ 001'0 1 osz'vey  $ 00L°0 oszvey  $ abelaAy pue Jejol puny
08Z'vey 11062 LLOBLSAS 08Z'veY 0010 s 08Z'veY €102/10/.0 0010 08Z'vEr asn Isni1 jueg sn
pun4d A V0102 2# anss| 537

6zL'9zL  § 6zL'9z.  § 0040 1 6zL'oz.  $ 0010 6zL'9zL  § oBelany pue [ejo) pung
62L'9eL ¥006.. YO0BLSAS 621'9eL 0040 b 624'9ZL €10Z/L0/0  00L'0 621'92L gsn IsniL jueg sn
pung sa 90102 L# @nss| 0371

2e9'e69 § 2£9'c69 $ 0040 L 2€9'c69 $ 0010 2e9'e69 § abeiaAy pue [ejo] pung
2€9'€69 £006L €006/SAS 2£9'€69 0010 L 2€9'€69 €102/10/20 0010 2€9'€69 gsn IsnuL yueg sn
pund €A voLoz L#dnss| 037

b 1 ¥52°0 1 2 $ v§20 4 $ abesany pue [ejo) pung
L 0v002 OYO0LSAS | ¥52'0 L L €L0Z/L0/L0  ¥520 L wijsaAu| AousBy jeoo]
Buiajoaay uoponiisuo) 937

yig'LL $ viZLL $ €970 L vie'LL $ £9%°0 viz'iL $ abeiaAy pue [ejo] pung
Pz 9¥00. 9¥00LSAS PLT'VL €950 L [4X4%2 €L0Z/L0IL0  €9¥°0 vig'LL unsaau| AousBy |20
anjep bulAue) # JuaWwysaay| dISND  anep jaxJep PISIA Ajunmep aeq 8alld ajeq ajey anjep pajels ueipojsny / asisnd | Janss|

Ainbg 03 sheq funjep paseyoind aseyaung 1sa1aju|
puog
100y uonyony HHOH JF7
9102/0€/90

| abed

poday sJainseal]

RouaBy Jamod elulojijes uIayLoN

AINITY 43N0 VINEOFIVO NYIHINON

VdONL

R




Z19'065's¢

wd zg:y 910Z/50/20

*Auo £1/0€/9 uo alqe|{eD - YINNA — LYESZ # JusiliysaAu]

‘o Aue uay3 ‘£1/5Z/ UO o|qe|[ED - §D:4d — LEEIZ # JUsUNSaAU]

9L0Z/0E/90 JO S [eLINOC J2213G e B4} WOy saold piq 10 Sjusliale)s Uelpojsny jaa)sni | Woly saald uo paseq sy anjep jexJep Juaiing

‘poyjau JoeX3 L 3sh S18Y)0 || ‘poyjows ajewixoidde ue asn Ajunje o} syjuow g uey) SS3| YjIM SJUBLUISBAU]
rsadA} ||e ueamjaq uosiedwon 1oy siseq e apiroid 0} Jeak Aep gog & Uo paseq umoys s| AjUNje 0} PIBIA JUajeAinb3g puog,

‘LLL'6V9'ST 088'0 10L £09°209'67 1£6°0 LgLivs'ss ¢ 1STVLOL ANVHO
855's6e'LL  $ 6EL'LEYLL 1€6°0 193 62ELWEL  $ 260°L L08'9vE‘LL  $ aBeiany pue |ejo) pung
000'000'e Lp€9Z ZPNEDIELE 0LE'200'C 00€E'L o9r'L 0202/08/90  000'000'€ 910Z/0E/90  00E'L 000'000°¢ o08n BI (euoneN |esepad
¥9£'286'C 8y292 YYZ0OSELE 95L'v10'e 0ze'L €96 6102/6L/20  ZTvL'866'C GL0Z/8TI80  Gi8'Y 000'€E6'T oodn By [euoNEN |esspedy
18€'660'€ 8EE9T GOTBYOELE 908'00L'E §99°0 19 L102Z//2/90  08€'660'C 9L0e2/Le/90  §290 000'00L'e o04an B UE0T BWOH [esepay
0 1002 LbOOLSAS 0O 2000 L 0 €102/8L/L0 2000 o 008N oy[eD Jo ueg uoiun
208'€LE'T 2b00L LVOOLSAS L08'ELE'Z 9%'0 X L08'ELET €L02/L0/20 290 108'€1LE'T unseAu| Aousby [eoo
9AIBSaY N ® O 031
1L0'280'Y  $ LL0°280°L 00L'0 1 1.0°80'  $ 0040 110°180°L  § abeioAy pue jejo) puny
110'180"} €106. €LOBLSAS L.0'/80'L 0010 i 120'/80°} €L02/L0/20  00L0 110'/80' asn 1snJL ueg SN
S9Vd ¥Sa 9010z Z2# enss| 5371
9L2'z9g'c  $ 9.2'292T 00L°0 l 9/2'292'c  § 0040 9.2'792C $ abelaAy pue |ejo) pund
92292’ 9006. 9006LSAS 912'292'C 0010 L 9/2'z92'z €L02/L0/.0 0010 9/T'z9T'e asn snuL sueg sn
AS8Y sqng sgvd d0L0¢ L#ss| 031
anjep buifuiey # Juswisaau| dISND  onjep el PIBIA Aumep ajeq aoud 9jeq a1ey an[ep pajels ueipojsng f avdjsnay lanssj
Alnbg 03 sheq funjey paseyaing aseyoind IsaJagup
spuog
AS8Y sqng Sgvd 90102 L#Ss] 0311
9102/0€/90

Z 8bed

KouaBy Jamod eluioylfen UlByUoN

Joday sJainseal]

A3MIVV YZ/ADS VINEGSITVD HEIH DN

VdONL/

e x\mw A

/




A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

July 14, 2016
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: July 27, 2016

SUBJECT: Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Alameda Singie Member Services
Agreement for Special Transactions and Confirmation of Advisory Services

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\o-

FROM: David Dockham METHOD OF SELECTION:
AGM, Power Management N/A

Division: Power Management If other, please describe:
Department: Industry Restructuring N/A
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi City of Ukiah
Alameda Municipal Power | X City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland
City of Biggs City of Redding Truckee Donner PUD
City of Gridley City of Roseville ' Other
City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify.

Place an X in the box next to the applicable Member(s) above.

SR: 173:16



Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Alameda SMSA and Confirmation of Advisory Services
July 27, 2016
Page 2

RECONMENDATION:
NCPA staff recommends that the Commission:

1. Adopt and approve Amendment No. 1 to the Single Member Services Agreement for
Special Transactions by and between the City of Alameda and Northern California
Power Agency; and

2. Adopt and approve the Confirmation of Advisory Services under which NCPA shall
provide Advisory Services in support of the City of Alameda’s desire to sell its
entitlement share of the output of the Butte Landfill Project and the High Winds Project to
a third party; and

3. Authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute the Amendment No. 1 to the Single
Member Services Agreement for Special Transactions and the Confirmation of Advisory
Services, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to the
Amendment No. 1 to the Single Member Services Agreement for Special Transactions
and the Confirmation for Advisory Services, as approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

The Single Member Services Agreement for Special Transactions by and between the City of
Alameda (“Alameda”) and the Northern California Power Agency (“NCPA”) (the “Alameda
SMSA”) contains the terms and conditions under which NCPA may supply certain Services to
Alameda, including, but not limited to, Advisory Services. The Alameda SMSA contains an
effective date of July 5, 2006, and is set to terminate automatically ten (10) years from its
effective date. NCPA and Alameda desire to extend the term of the Alameda SMSA and
associated Confirmations to enable NCPA’s continued provision of Services and Transactions
to Alameda, as contemplated under the Alameda SMSA.

Alameda has also requested NCPA to provide certain Advisory Services pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the Alameda SMSA.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE ALAMEDA SMSA

To enable NCPA and Alameda to extend the effective term of the Alameda SMSA, NCPA, in
coordination with Alameda, has developed Amendment No. 1 to the Alameda SMSA to extend
the term of the Alameda SMSA through June 30, 2026.

Amendment No. 1 to the Alameda SMSA has been attached to this staff report for your
reference.

CONFIRMATION FOR ADVISORY SERVICES

Pursuant to the Alameda SMSA, NCPA may provide certain Advisory Services to Alameda upon
receipt of a written Confirmation requesting such Advisory Services. Advisory Services include
technical, economic, financial, legal, risk and credit analysis, and other advice of a professional
manner. Alameda has submitted an Advisory Services request to NCPA, seeking NCPA’s
assistance to sell Alameda’s entitlement share of the output of the Butte Landfill Project and the
High Winds Project (the “Projects”) to a third party. In response to Alameda’s request, NCPA
has prepared a Confirmation of Advisory Services under which NCPA has agreed to assist

SR: 173:16



Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Alameda SMSA and Confirmation of Advisory Services
July 27, 2016
Page 3

Alameda by: (i) performing certain market review and quantitative analysis to develop desired
terms of sale for marketing Alameda’s entitlement share of the Projects, (i) assisting Alameda
with the development of a Request for Offers to seek bids from prospective buyers, and (iii)
pending receipt of bids from prospective buyers, assisting Alameda in evaluating offers and
development of an agreement under which Alameda may sell its entitlement share of output in
the Projects.

The Confirmation of Advisory Services has been attached to this staff report for your reference.
FISCAL IMPACT:

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Alameda SMSA, NCPA shall invoice Alameda for all
costs associated with work performed under the Confirmation of Advisory Services. Such
services shall be invoiced on a time and materials basis at NCPA’s cost, including all benefits
paid to NCPA employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the

California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

pectfully submitted,

NDY L HOWARD

General Manager

Attachments: 3

SR: 173:16



RESOLUTION 16-53

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE ALAMEDA SINGLE MEMBER
SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL TRANSACTIONS AND CONFIRMATION
OF ADVISORY SERVICES

(reference Staff Report #173:16)

WHEREAS, the Single Member Services Agreement for Special Transactions by and between
the City of Alameda (“Alameda”) and the Northern California Power Agency (“NCPA”) (the “Alameda
SMSA") contains the terms and conditions under which NCPA may supply certain Services to
Alameda, including, but not limited to, Advisory Services; and

WHEREAS, the Alameda SMSA contains an effective date of July 5, 2006, and is set to
terminate automatically ten (10) years from its effective date; and

WHEREAS, NCPA and Alameda desire to extend the term of the Alameda SMSA and
associated Confirmations to enable NCPA’s continued provision of Services and Transactions to
Alameda, as contemplated under the Alameda SMSA; and

WHEREAS, to enable NCPA and Alameda to extend the effective term of the Alameda SMSA,
NCPA, in coordination with Alameda, has developed Amendment No. 1 to the Alameda SMSA to
extend the term of the Alameda SMSA through June 30, 2026; and

- WHEREAS, pursuant to the Alameda SMSA, NCPA may provide certain Advisory Services to
Alameda upon receipt of a written Confirmation requesting such Advisory Services; and

WHEREAS, Advisory Services include technical, economic, financial, legal, risk and credit
analysis, and other advice of a professional manner; and

WHEREAS, Alameda has submitted an Advisory Services request to NCPA, seeking NCPA's
assistance to sell Alameda'’s entitiement share of the output of the Butte Landfill Project and the High
Winds Project (the “Projects”) to a third party; and

WHEREAS, in response to Alameda’s request, NCPA has prepared a Confirmation of Advisory
Services under which NCPA has agreed to assist Alameda by: (i) performing certain market review
and quantitative analysis to develop desired terms of sale for marketing Alameda’s entitlement share
of the Projects, (ii) assisting Alameda with the development of a Request for Offers to seek bids from
prospective buyers, and (iii) pending receipt of bids from prospective buyers, assisting Alameda in
evaluating offers and development of an agreement under which Alameda may sell its entitlement
share of output in the Projects; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Alameda SMSA, NCPA shall invoice
Alameda for all costs associated with work performed under the Confirmation of Advisory Services,
and such services shall be invoiced on a time and materials basis at NCPA’s cost, including all
benefits paid to NCPA employees; and



WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change
in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency:

1. Adopts and approves Amendment No. 1 to the Single Member Services Agreement for Special
Transactions by and between the City of Alameda and Northern California Power Agency; and

2. Adopts and approves the Confirmation of Advisory Services under which NCPA shall provide
Advisory Services in support of the City of Alameda’s desire to sell its entitlement share of the
output of the Butte Landfill Project and the High Winds Project to a third party; and

3. Authorizes the General Manager of NCPA to execute the Amendment No. 1 to the Single
Member Services Agreement for Special Transactions and the Confirmation of Advisory
Services, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to the Amendment
No. 1 to the Single Member Services Agreement for Special Transactions and the
Confirmation for Advisory Services, as approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ___ day of , 2016 by the
following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

CAROL GARCIA ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIRPERSON ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 16-53 -2-



SINGLE MEMBER SERVICES AGREEMENT
for
SPECIAL TRANSACTIONS
by and between the
CITY OF ALAMEDA
(Alameda Municipal Power)
and the

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

AMENDMENT NO. 1

This Amendment No. 1 to the Single Member Services Agreement for Special Transactions
by and between the City of Alameda (“Alameda”) and the Northern California Power Agency
(“NCPA”) dated as of July 5, 2006 (the “Alameda SMSA”) is made this ___ day of
, 20 with reference to the following facts, among others:

A. The Alameda SMSA contains an Effective Date of July 5, 2006, and is set to terminate
automatically ten (10) years from its Effective Date.

B. The Parties desire to extend the term of the Alameda SMSA and associated
Confirmations to enable NCPA’s continued provision of Services and Transactions to
Alameda as contemplated under the Alameda SMSA.

Therefore, the Parties agree as follows:
1. Section 8.1 of the Alameda SMSA is replaced in its entirety with the following:

“8.1 Term of This Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date
and shall end on June 30, 2026. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Party may, at any
time during the term of the Agreement, terminate this Agreement on a date at least ninety
(90) days after delivery of a written notice of termination to the other Party, provided that,
no termination shall become effective until the termination of all Services and
Transactions.”



Alameda SMSA — Amendment No. 1
Page 2

The Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Alameda SMSA to be executed on the
date as set forth above.

CITY OF ALAMEDA NCPA

By: Glenn O. Steiger By: Randy Howard

Date: Date:

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM

Alan Cohen Michael Dean, General Counsel

Assistant City Attorney



SINGLE MEMBER SERVICES AGREEMENT
for
SPECIAL TRANSACTIONS
by and between the
CITY OF ALAMEDA
(ALAMEDA MUNICIPAL POWER)
and the

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

CONFIRMATION
ADVISORY SERVICES

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Single Member Services Agreement
for Special Transactions by and between the City of Alameda and the Northern California Power
Agency (“Alameda SMSA”) dated July 5, 2006, as such may be amended from time to time,
Northern California Power Agency (“NCPA”) may provide certain Advisory Services to the City of
Alameda (“Member”) upon receipt of a written Confirmation requesting such Advisory Services
from Member. Advisory Services includes technical, economic, financial, legal, risk and credit
analysis, and other advice of a professional manner. Member has requested NCPA to provide
Advisory Services as described herein, and NCPA has agreed to provide such Advisory Services
in consideration of the costs of such activities as described herein. The Advisory Services
provided to Member herein are separate and distinct from all other Advisory Services NCPA
may provide to Member pursuant to the Alameda SMSA; therefore, this Confirmation does not
replace or supersede any other Confirmation that may be made between NCPA and Member.

SCOPE OF ADVISORY SERVICES

Member has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement with Ameresco Butte County
LLC, dated October 21, 2008, under which Member purchases output from a landfill gas electric
generating facility located at the Butte County Neal Road Landfill (the “Butte Landfill Project”).
Member has also entered into a Long-Term Power Purchase Agreement with PPM Energy, Inc.,
dated December 7, 2004, as such may be amended from time to time, under which Member
purchases firm energy and environmental attributes produced by a wind turbine electrical
generation facility located at a site in Solano County, California (the “High Winds Project”).
Member has expressed an interest to sell its entitlement share of the output of the Butte
Landfill Project and the High Winds Project to a Third Party for the balance of the term of each
respective agreement. While Member is the purchaser and contracting party to each of the
power purchase agreements, Member has requested NCPA's assistance to market the output of
the Butte Landfill Project and High Winds Project to prospective buyers.

Pursuant to this Confirmation, Member requests NCPA's provision of the following
Advisory Services in support of Member’s desire to sell its entitlement share of the output of
the Butte Landfill Project and the High Winds Project to a third party:



Alameda SMSA - Confirmation of Advisory Services
Page 2

e Perform certain market review and quantitative analysis to assist Member in
developing its desired terms of sale for marketing its entitlement share of the output of
the Butte Landfill Project and the High Winds Project to prospective buyers;

e Assist Member with the development of a Request for Offers (“RFO”) to seek bids from
prospective buyers to purchase its entitlement share of the output of the Butte Landfill
Project and the High Winds Project for the balance of the term of each respective
agreement; and

e Pending receipt of bids from prospective buyers, NCPA shall assist Member in
evaluating such offers to determine if they satisfy the requirements set by Member,
and NCPA will assist Member with the development of an agreement under which
Member’s entitlement share of the output of the Butte Landfill Project and the High
Winds Project will be sold to buyer for the balance of the term of each respective
agreement.

COST OF ADVISORY SERVICES

In compensation for NCPA’s provision of Advisory Services, as described herein, NCPA
shall invoice Member for all costs associated with work performed on behalf of Member on a
time and materials basis at NCPA’s cost, including all benefits paid to NCPA employees. By
executing this Confirmation, Member hereby agrees to compensate NCPA for any and all costs,
including legal fees, associated with NCPA’s provision of Advisory Services.

Member waives all provisions of the Alameda SMSA Article 2, including those requiring
that NCPA provide estimates of costs or man-hours, names of personal who will perform
services, or schedules of performance.

WAIVER OF RISK DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Member, by executing this Confirmation, acknowledges that it is aware of and has fully
considered the risks inherent in consummating the transaction contemplated herein, and based
on such understanding of the risks Alameda waives NCPA’s obligation to develop and provide
the following risk disclosure statements as required under the SMSA: Contract Form Risk
Disclosure Statement, Counterparty Risk Disclosure Statement, and Contract Damages Risk
Disclosure Statement.



Alameda SMSA — Confirmation of Advisory Services
Page 3

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Alameda SMSA and this Confirmation, the
undersigned hereby approves the scope of Advisory Services described herein. The Parties

have caused this Advisory Services Confirmation to be executed on this day of
,20
CITY OF ALAMEDA NCPA
By: Glenn O. Steiger By: Randy Howard
Date: Date:
APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM
Alan Cohen Michael Dean, General Counsel

Assistant City Attorney



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

DATE: July 18, 2016

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: July 27, 2016

SUBJECT: Cisco Air Systems, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement
for Air Compressor Services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA

Generation Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA

Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

/2
FROM: Ken Speer METHOD OF SELECTION:
Generation Services
Division: Generation Services N/A
Department: CTs
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members | X City of Lodi City of Ukiah
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland

City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

City of Redding
City of Roseville
City of Santa Clara

Truckee Donner PUD
Other

o
If other, please specify.

Place an X in the box next to the applicable Member(s) above.

SR: 176:16




Cisco Air Systems, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
July 27, 2016
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 16-54 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Cisco Air Systems, Inc. for air compressor
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”),
or by SCPPA members.

BACKGROUND:

Air compressor services are needed at various NCPA locations as well as member facilities for
the operation of the plants. Cisco Air Systems, Inc. is a provider of these services. NCPA has an
existing agreement with Cisco Air Systems executed in 2012 which is expiring as a result of the
authorized funds being nearly fully expended.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $500,000 over five years to be used out of NCPA
approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based
on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on July 6, 2016 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Participant Committee on
July 11, 2016 and was approved.

SR: 176:16



Cisco Air Systems, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
July 27, 2016
Page 3

Respecitfully submitted,

et i

HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

SR: 176:16



RESOLUTION 16-54

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CISCO AIR
SYSTEMS, INC.

(reference Staff Report #176:16)

WHEREAS, various air compressor services are periodically required for plant operations at
the facilities owned and/or operated by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its members, the
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA members; and

WHEREAS, Cisco Air Systems, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, on July 11, 2016, the LEC Project Participant Committee approved the agreement
with Cisco Air Systems, Inc. in an amount not-to-exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change
in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Cisco Air Systems, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for various air compressor
services at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California
Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2016 by the following vote

on roll call:
Vote Abstained Absent

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

CAROL GARCIA ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIRPERSON ASSISTANT SECRETARY



9245 ASERCY

" HORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
CISCO AIR SYSTEMS, INC.

This agreement for general services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern California
Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA
95678-6420 (“Agency’) and Cisco Air Systems, Inc., an S Corporation with its office located at 214 27t
Street, Sacramento, CA 95816 (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of
, 2016 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods described in the Scope of
Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing the Work. Contractor
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth
herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Contractor shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

14  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may include Work
directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the terms of this
Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (*SCPPA’) or
SCPPA members. '

15  Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the
date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to.perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to perform

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1



Section 2.

the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does not respond within
the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have agreed to perform the Requested
Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO

EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto and

“incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full

amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and
each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to Agency's
reasonable satisfaction;

» At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the
requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a Purchase
Order from the Contract Administrator. :

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 2 of 23



2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In
the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the
ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final
payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at its sole
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work.

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement,
Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Coniractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. ‘

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as 1SO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded
from general liability insurance.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 3 of 23



4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally left blank.

4.4 Pollution Insurance. If Contractor's Work involves its transporting hazardous materials,
then Contractor shall obtain and maintain Contractors' Pollution Liability Insurance of not
less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) for any one occurrence and not less than four
million dollars ($4,000,000) aggregate. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not
exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00) per claim. Such insurance shall
be on “an occurrence” basis. (Not applicable)

“Hazardous Materials” means any toxic or hazardous substance, hazardous material,
dangerous or hazardous waste, dangerous good, radioactive material, petroleum or
petroleum-derived products or by-products, or any other chemical, substance, material or
emission, that is regulated, listed, or controlled pursuant to any national, state, or local law,
statute, ordinance, directive, regulation, or other legal requirement of the United States.

4.5 All Policies Requirements.

451 \Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2 and in
Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the Agency as an additional insured and
declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed pursuant to this
Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

453 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by
the Contractor.

454 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs Work for
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this Agreement,
Agency shall have the right to require Contractor to provide the certificates of
insurance and/or policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the
specific Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 4 of 23



Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are and remain covered by
the policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure
that all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element

Scope, Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands,
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs (including without limitation
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of
or in connection with any acts or omissions by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency.

Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under
Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active

4.6
and subcontractors.
4.7
Section 5.
51
of consideration.
5.2
negligence of Agency.
Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.
6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of
Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency
shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work

Multi-Task General Services Agreement betWeen

GS-VEN-2016-034

Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 5 of 23



rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal
policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitiement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing
the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Contractor's failure to secure workers’
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2  Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement
to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Contractor. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall supervise all work

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 6 of 23



6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

741
7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall be responsible for all work
performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Contractor from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to
ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous Materials
Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it
executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or more
Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types of construction,
repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall execute Exhibit E and/or similar
documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by
the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants that it is
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform Work
consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. [n accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the
locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate
of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work as provided in the Califoria Labor Code
must be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Work. In accordance with California
Labor Code Section 1770 and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 7 of 23



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is
to be performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages
and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be
performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform the project;
and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the Agency and will be
made available on request. Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must
comply with all applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance
of the Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the State of
California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any worker or any
other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 3, Article
2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding Bodies, copies of the
applicable determination of the Director can be found on the web at:
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period;, copies of
Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of Industrial
Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774 and
1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to Agency
$50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for such work or craft
in which such worker is employed for any Work done under the Agreement by Contractor
or by any subcontractor under Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code
and in particular, Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and
pursuant to Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker
was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to Agency any or all
records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 8 of 23



8.3

8.4

Section 9.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by Contractor;
and/or

8.44 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work that is
unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor under this

Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001

Page 9 of 23



request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under this Agreement.

94 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1

9.4.2

9.4.3

Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential Information to the
other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confidence; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or other
representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in connection
with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, govemment or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 10 of 23



Section 10.

9.44 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
Information (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in
writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of
such Confidential [nformation, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with the operations of the Agency; if applicable, the entity for which Contractor
is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project
site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon
completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and
free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the
Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or
materials which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for
such. Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or
without permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to have been
abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by Agency or, if applicable, the
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be
solely as an accommodation and neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which
Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability
therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-
owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any
equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on
the Project site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new
and in good condition.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001

Page 11 of 23



10.3  Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for
its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency and, if applicable, the
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, for the
performance of Work.

Section11.  WARRANTY.

111 Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law or public
policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in design and
workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations including engineering, construction and
other codes and standards and prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement.

11.2  Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency may
have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be obligated at its own
expense to perform, all further Work which may be required to correct any deficiencies
which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any Work in accordance with the
standards required by this Agreement. If during the term of this Agreement or the one (1)
year period following completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials
or Work used or provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in
material and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon
any reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

11.3  Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, provided
by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material used in the Work.

Section 12. HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and

enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program intended to ensure
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of
such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all site programs
established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4.

121 Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to safely
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

12.2  Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training and
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified training
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 12 of 23



12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and
will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance of the
Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall be required to
comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. Non-
compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result in cessation of work
activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is also expressly acknowledged,
understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency to Contractor under this
Agreement at any time when, or for any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full
compliance with this Section 12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety representative.
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the Agency site safety
representative copies of all written accident reports, and coordinate with Agency if further
investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of its
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall conduct
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure of its
employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions. Copies of any
sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous wastes, if
any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to
actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a
Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and
clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks
owned or leased by the Contractor.

Work Provided Pursuant to Section 1.4. If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency
Member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this
section) pursuant to Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as
the Agency under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc. ‘
Rev'd 1/8/16

25914001

Page 13 of 23



13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place

Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,

codified at California Government Code Section 81000 ef seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s representative. Al
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Cisco Air Systems, Inc.
Attention: Kent Frkovich
214 27t Street
Sacramento, CA 95816

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16

2591400.1

Page 14 of 23



Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

General Counsel
Northern California Power Agency
Meyers Nave
555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

139  Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. Al
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

1311 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Contractor agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 15 of 23



13.12

13.13

13.14

13.15

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative remedy prior to
either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution
process is not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time
periods for filing a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900
et seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, and Contractor's Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and the Contractor's Proposal, the
Exhibits shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should
Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively
for the purpose of this section only “Member”) pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties’
recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase
Order and Requested Work relating to such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY CISCO AIR SYSTEMS, INC.

Date Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager KENT FRKOVICH, President

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between . GS-VEN-2016-034

Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 “

2591400.1

Page 16 of 23



Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Assistant General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16

2591400.1 Page 17 of 23



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Cisco Air Systems, Inc. (“Contractor”) shall provide specialized OEM air compressor maintenance and
services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency (*Agency”) at all facilities owned or
operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or SCPPA
members. These services are not subject to the Maintenance Labor Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001 Page 18 of 23



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in
Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of

expenses is as follows:

Pricing Specific to CT/LEC Facilities:

Brand tladel Serial HFP Year Annual Servics
Hrs Visits Per
Contract
Atlas Copeo ZT18-FF ANTA4258 30 2005 4 000 10
Atlas Copco CBE&d All811770 2005 £ Q00 10
Atlas Copeo inline Filvers ODB0 & PDEO 4. 000 z2
Atlas Copeo CD350 US0585711 2011 4 000 10

This Service Plan agreement is & comprahensive praventative maintenance (PM] program:

s ZT1S Minor Preventative Maintenance Service Every - {6) Months
Replace air & oil filter kit
Replace breather kit
Take lubricant sample
Take 5PM rzadings
Perform 47-point inspection
= Zee copy of inspaction form on pg-3 for details
Inspect Alr Treatment eguipmsnt
o Advise of any issues

[ I R o B A

fu)

« ZT18 Major Preventative Malntenance Serwice Every - [24) Manths
Same as the above minor service

Replace mufflar, drain valve & inlet valve

Replace lubricant

Graase drive motor bearings

Advise of any issues

™)

5 I  I v

Quarterly Price: $1,350.00 plus applicable sales tax

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 19 of 23



ot Including Sales Tax

$8,695.00

Item Mg Model Serial Number | Description | Mg Year gperggsﬁ',wrs

1 Ingzrsoll Rand P18 W I5ARL 2158 200 HF 2012 4000

z Aflas Copeo FT145 APFIB2045 200 HE 2012 6,000

a Atlas Copoo ZT145 APF184682 200 HF 2012 5,000

& Aflas Sepeo DD3A0P (4] MIA Inline Filters 2012 8,000 .

5 Aflas Copeo PD3D0 ($) M, Inline Filt=rs 012 &.000

&

-

24

Guuarterly Price

Pricing for services to be performed at other NCPA facilities, at NCPA Member facilities, or SCPPA or
SCPPA member locations will be quoted at the time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001

GS-VEN-2016-034

Page 20 of 23



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)
do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of
CISCO AIR SYSTEMS, INC.
(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 21 of 23



EXHIBIT D ~ NOT APPLICABLE
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans in
conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background investigations in
conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. ,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034
Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 22 of 23



EXHIBIT E - NOT APPLICABLE

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1) It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) because it
has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the Agreement), or to authorize another
party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

2) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further consideration of the
promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a copy of which was received and is
hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and condition of the
Agreement, together with any and all amendments and supplements now existing or which are
later made thereto.

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally establishes trust agreements designated
in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the parties to such local
frust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to administer the trust funds, and
hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as if made by the undersigned.

4) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete compliance with
the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this documents, from any
Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, award, or subcontract Covered
Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform

Covered Work.
DATED: Name of Employer
(Authorized Officer & Title)
(Address)
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-034

Northern California Power Agency and Cisco Air Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25314001 Page 23 of 23



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

DATE: July 18, 2016

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: July 27, 2016

SUBJECT: 3D Technical Services — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement
for Electrical and Instrumentation Services; Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Generation Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA,
and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speer —° METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General Manager
Division: Generation Services N/A

Department: CTs

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members | X City of Lodi City of Ukiah
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland
City of Biggs City of Redding Truckee Donner PUD
City of Gridley City of Roseville Other

City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify.

Place an X in the box next to the applicable Member(s) above.

SR: 177:16




3D Technical Services — 5 Year MTGSA
July 18, 2016
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 16-55 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with 3D Technical Services for electrical and
instrumentation services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (‘SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members.

BACKGROUND:

Electrical and instrumentation services are periodically required for plant operations at various
NCPA locations as well as member facilities for the operation of the plants. 3D Technical
Services is a provider of these services.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $500,000 over five years to be used out of NCPA
approved budgets as services are rendered. NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent
with NCPA procurement policies and procedures. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures. :

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place another enabling agreement
with Contra Costa Electric for similar services and seeks bids from as many qualified providers
as possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders
based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on July 6, 2016 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Participant Committee on
July 11, 2016 and was approved.

SR: 177:16



3D Technical Services —5 Year MTGSA
July 18, 2016
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

A & 1

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with 3D Technical Services

SR: 177:16



RESOLUTION 16-55

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
3D TECHNICAL SERVICES

(reference Staff Report #177:16)

WHEREAS, various electrical and instrumentation services are periodically required for plant
operations at the facilities owned and/or operated by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its
members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA members; and

WHEREAS, 3D Technical Services is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, on July 11, 2016, the LEC Project Participant Committee approved the agreement
with 3D Technical Services in an amount not-to-exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change
in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with 3D Technical Services, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for various electrical and
instrumentation services at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2016 by the following vote

on roll call:
Vote Abstained Absent

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley.
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

CAROL GARCIA ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIRPERSON ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIT AZERDY

& i
HNORYHERM CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

' MULTI-TASK :
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
3D TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC.

This agreement for general services (*Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern California
Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA
95678-6420 (“Agency”) and 3D Technical Services, Inc., a corporation with its office located at 2270 Curry
Canyon Road, Clayton, CA 94517 (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of

Section 1.

2016 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,

Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods described in the Scope of
Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) years from the

date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing the Work. Contractor
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth
herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Contractor shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may include Work
directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the terms of this
Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA’) or
SCPPA members.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.

The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the -
date of the Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to perform
the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does not respond within
GS-VEN-2016-042

Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001



the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have agreed to perform the Requested
Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO

EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and
each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to Agency's
reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Contractor performing work hereunder.

[nvoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the
requirements above to pay Contractor.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

24  Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a Purchase
Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 2 of 22



2.5  Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In
the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the
ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final
payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at its sole
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work.

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement,
Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded
from general liability insurance. :

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 3 of 22



4.3

4.4
4.5

- 4.6

4.7

Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally left blank.

Pollution Insurance. Not applicable.

All Policies Requirements.

451 \Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2 and in
Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the Agency as an additional insured and
declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. '

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide
- atleast thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

453 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by
the Contractor.

45.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs Work for
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this Agreement,
Agency shall have the right to require Contractor to provide the certificates of
insurance and/or policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the
specific Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents
and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all

equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are and remain covered by
the policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure
that all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 4 of 22



Section 5.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands,
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs (including without limitation
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of
or in connection with any acts or omissions by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency.

Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under
Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active
negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of -
Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency
shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal
policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitiement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing
the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Contractor.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 5 of 22



Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Contractor's failure to secure workers’
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement

- to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Contractor. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than fo the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall be responsible for all work
performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Contractor from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to
ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous Materials
Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it
executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

6.6  Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or more
Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types of construction,
repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall execute Exhibit E and/or similar
documentation as to compliance.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 . Page 6 of 22



Section 7.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

741
7.2

7.3

7.4

1.5

7.6

~ Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, quahﬂcatlons and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by
the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants that it is
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform Work
consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the
locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate
of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work as provided in the California Labor Code
must be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Work. In accordance with California
Labor Code Section 1770 and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has
determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is
to be performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages
and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be
performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform the project;
and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the Agency and will be
made available on request. Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must
comply with all applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance
of the Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the State of
California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any worker or any
other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 3, Article
2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding Bodies, copies of the
applicable determination of the Director can be found on the web at:
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 7 of 22



Section 8.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period, copies of
Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of Industrial
Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774 and
1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to Agency
$50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for such work or craft
in which such worker is employed for any Work done under the Agreement by Contractor
or by any subcontractor under Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code
and in particular, Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and
pursuant to Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker
was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to Agency any or all
records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by Contractor;
and/or

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between : GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 8 of 22



Section 9.

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work that is
unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,

models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all records or other

documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor under this
Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.41 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001

Page 9 of 22



engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party") Confidential Information to the
other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confidence; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or other
representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in connection
with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
Information (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in
writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

Section 10.  PROJECT SITE.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 10 of 22



10.1

10.2

10.3

Section 11.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with the operations of the Agency; if applicable, the entity for which Contractor
is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project
site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon
completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and
free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the
Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or
materials which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for
such. Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or
without permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to have been
abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by Agency or, if applicable, the
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be
solely as an accommodation and neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which
Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability
therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-
owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any
equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on
the Project site. All materials and supplies used by Confractor in the Work shall be new
and in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for
its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency and, if applicable, the
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, for the
performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

111

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law or public
policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in design and
workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations including engineering, construction and
other codes and standards and prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001

Page 11 of 22



11.2  Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency may
have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be obligated at its own
expense to perform, all further Work which may be required to correct any deficiencies
which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any Work in accordance with the
standards required by this Agreement. If during the term of this Agreement or the one (1)
year period following completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials
or Work used or provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in
material and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon
any reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

11.3  Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, provided
by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material used in the Work.

Section 12. HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program intended to ensure
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of
such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all site programs
established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4.

121 Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to safely
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

12.2  Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training and
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified training
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment.

12.3  Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and
will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

12.4  Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance of the
Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall be required to
comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. Non-
compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result in cessation of work
activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is also expressly acknowledged,
understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency to Contractor under this
Agreement at any time when, or for any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full
compliance with this Section 12.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 12 of 22



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety representative.
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the Agency site safety
representative copies of all written accident reports, and coordinate with Agency if further
investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of its
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall conduct
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure of its
employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions. Copies of any
sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous wastes, if
any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to
actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a
Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and
clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks
owned or leased by the Contractor.

Work Provided Pursuant to Section 1.4. If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency

Member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this
section) pursuant to Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as

the Agency under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

13.3

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attomeys'’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16

2591400.1

Page 13 of 22



13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or iri part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this

Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term

of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s representatlve All
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

3D Technical Services, Inc.
Attention: Daniel T. Farley, President
P.O. Box 176

Clayton, CA 94517

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16

259140041

Page 14 of 22



Michael F. Dean

General Counsel
Northern California Power Agency

Meyers Nave
555 Capitol Mall

, Suite 1200

Sacramento, CA 95814

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. Al
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Contractor agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative remedy prior to
either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution
process is not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042

Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25914001

Page 15 of 22



13.12

13.13

13.14

13.15

periods for filing a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900
et seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, and Contractor's Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and the Contractor's Proposal, the
Exhibits shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should
Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively
for the purpose of this section only “Member”) pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties
recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase
Order and Requested Work relating to such Member

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 3D TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC.
Date Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, DANIEL T. FARLEY,

General Manager President

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Assistant General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1

Page 16 of 22



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK
3D Technical Services, Inc. (“Contractor”) shall provide electrical and instrumentation services as
requested by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency’) at any facilities owned or operated by

Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members:

Services to include, but not be limited fo the following:

. Calibration

) Maintenance

. Automation

. Support Services

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16

2591400.1 Page 17 of 22



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in
Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of

expenses is as follows:

oT or
Straight Time Orverfime Double Tine Pramign  Premium
Process Enginsar S20 atel 5200 fSH §53
Lead Tachnigizn !/ Foremian 3108 S48 5190 41 232
Insirumiznt Technicizn 548 5135 E171 F35 272
Insirumant Fitter fate ] 3136 A a5 F72
Elewrician Foreman 3i08& 5148 B1ed 41 =2
Elecirician 385 FUE5 217 36 &ra
Definition £F Hours
Stralgnt Tlme:
A teuss wesk e during 3 mermas sighit (E-nour wosk day, Monday treough Fridsy.
i i
BE DU wOkSs vEs elght (5) caIrs 3nd L ba ban 1) h0Urs N & el work 3y
A houre up o fsn (15 worksd on Satunday.
Double Tine:
AT noUrs wodkad over tan £33 onnommal wesk 93y and Saiurdsys and &l s
woekes on Sundsye and o el holleays (New Years Day, Wamolzt Day, July 4,
1zbar Day, Thanksgiving Day and S day ater, Chiisimas Evsand Chalsimas Day
Emergency Cabl-Out
A feur [2Hhour minlm 3t s Ipoicatls s definsd above.
Eiling hours are portsl o porte
Contractor Markups
Saterals coei pus 20%
iZonsumEkies: oost Dlus 20%
Snupenent renizs coEt pue 15%
Specialized Equipment
Feterercs e TIibration and neialiation BEquipment Rete Schsduis
Travel and Subsisfence Expenses
on 3 per ot pesls wihih prior Sustomer aporaval
Expiraticn of current rates
iy Tocdeg ]
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042

Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 18 of 22



Equipment Description price per unit

menthly weekly daily
Calibration Equipnverf
Current Drivar [4-20 miaj Tramsmation 10235 or eqgual F250 75 30
Thermocouple Simulaior Transmation 1084 or equszl 525D 75 40
RTD Simulator Transmation 1074 or exqusl F260 BTE 4
Pressurs Calibrator Transmation 1081 w! meodules or equal 3325 385 pxale]
Fragquency Calikrator Transmation 1171 grequsl F335 5E8 350
Smart Communicator 3325 3&5 550
Preecigicn Multimater Fluks 87 or aqual 5350 i<l 40
Temperaiure Bath By Block temp Cslibrator 3559 5350 284
Construstion Equipaysrt

Truck |Pickup) 81,400 SE00 S1&0
Pipe Threading Machine - 173" tc 3" Rigid 535 or equal 51,000 S350 F100
Conduit Sender Zreenles S55 or egual 51,600 3350 5100
Welding Machins 51500 S350 100
Calibration Traller mob S demab not included F1.,000 B350 100

Equipment rajes include all mainienance and fusl. &l aquipment is quaied without oparator.

Rates for equipment will be charged as noted:

Dailv Any use wihin a twenty-four (32) hour period.
Cumuisiive ves par day never will sxceed weskly rats

Weekly Fiva (5) days or musrs of eight {8) hours sach.
Cunmdaiive uee pec weak gever will exceed monifhly afe

WMonthis Tuen {27 full weaks or more of conssouiive eguipment usage.

Expiration of current rafes
1203102018

Agency acknowledges that Contractor's pricing is subject to change. Contractor shall provide thirty (30)
days advance written notice to Agency of any price changes.

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the time
services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 ' Page 19 of 22



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)
do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of
3D Technical Services, Inc.
(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 20 of 22



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBITD

CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans in
conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background investigations in
conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to time, '

(Company name)

for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20 __.

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2531400.1 Page 21 of 22



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1) It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) because it
has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the Agreement), or to authorize another
party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

2) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further consideration of the
promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a copy of which was received and is
hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and condition of the
Agreement, together with any and all amendments and supplements now existing or which are
later made thereto.

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally establishes trust agreements designated
in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the parties to such local
trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to administer the trust funds, and
hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as if made by the undersigned.

4) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete compliance with
the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this documents, from any
Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, award, or subcontract Covered
Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform
Covered Work.

DATED: Name of Employer

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-042
Northern California Power Agency and 3D Technical Services, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2591400.1 Page 22 of 22



A PUBLIC AGENLY

PA

4/ NORTHERN CALIFGRNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

DATE: July 18, 2016
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: July 27, 2016

SUBJECT: GHD, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement for
Engineering Services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility
Locations, Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\>

FROM: Ken Speer (’> METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services

Department: Hydroelectric

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members | X City of Lodi City of Ukiah
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland
City of Biggs City of Redding Truckee Donner PUD
City of Gridley City of Roseville Other
City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify.

Place an X in the box next to the applicable Member{(s) above.

SR: 178:16



GHD, Inc.— 5 Year MTPSA
July 18, 2016
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 16-56 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with GHD, Inc. for engineering consulting services
related to project support and plant operations, with any non-substantial changes recommended
and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,500,000 over five
years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members.

BACKGROUND:

Various professional and engineering services, such as civil, environmental, geotechnical and
structural engineering, mapping and land surveying, construction observation and testing, and
other miscellaneous engineering tasks are required from time to time related to project support
and plant operations at facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the
Southern California Public Power Authority (‘“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members. GHD, Inc., is a
provider of these services, and has previously provided engineering services to the NCPA

facilities.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $2,500,000 over five years to
be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required. NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other enabling agreements
with AMEC Environment & Infrastructure, Condor Earth Technologies, and GEI Consultants for
similar services and seeks bids from as many qualified providers as possible. Bids are awarded
to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of
the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not resuilt in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is hecessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on July 6, 2016 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

SR: 178:16



GHD, Inc. — 5 Year MTPSA .
July 18, 2016
Page 3

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Participant Committee on
July 11, 2016 and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

? s [

RANDY S! HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with GHD, Inc.

SR: 178:16



RESOLUTION 16-56

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
GHD, INC.

(reference Staff Report #178:16)

WHEREAS, professional and engineering services such as civil, environmental, geotechnical
and structural engineering related to project support and plant operations are periodically required at
the facilities owned and/or operated by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its members, the
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA members; and

WHEREAS, GHD, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, on July 11, 2016, the LEC Project Participant Committee approved the agreement
with GHD, Inc., in an amount not-to-exceed $2,500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change
in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional
Services Agreement with GHD, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,500,000 over five years for engineering consulting
services related to project support and plant operations for use at all facilities owned and/or operated
by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA

members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ___ day of , 2016 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

CAROL GARCIA ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIRPERSON ASSISTANT SECRETARY



2 P28UT ASERTY

# NORTHERN CALIFORKIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
GHD INC.

This agreement for professional services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and GHD Inc., a corporation with its office located at 4080 Plaza
Goldorado Circle, Suite B, Cameron Park, CA 95682 (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the
‘Parties”) as of , 2016 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant
shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and
incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing the Services. Consultant
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Services set forth
herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Consultant shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

14  Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may include
Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the
terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”") or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Services. Atsuch time that Agency determines to use Consultant's Services
under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall
identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested Services"), may include a not-to-
exceed monetary cap on Requested Services and expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and a time by which the Requested Services shall be completed.
Consultant shall have seven calendar days from the date of the Agency's issuance of the
Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the
Requested Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services or does not respond within the seven day period

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16 » Page 1 0f 19
25954421



Section 2.

241

2.2

23

specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services on the
terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO
EXCEED two million five hundred thousand dollars ($2,500,000.00) for the Services, which
shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant's
fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is
not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit
of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Services performed,;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Consultant performing services hereunder; and

= At Agency’s option, when the Consultant's Scope of Work identifies tasks, for each
work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries showing the name of
the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of
the work, and each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to
Agency’s reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent fo:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred.
Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of
the requirements above to pay Consultant.

Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between : GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2595442.1

Page 2 of 19



24

2.5

Section 3.

Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any
Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of
written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant fails to submit
an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is
deemed to have waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole

cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Services.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement,

Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

41

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall maintain
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant with limits of not less than
one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded
from general liability insurance.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2595442.1

_ Page 3 of 19



4.2.3 General Liability/lUmbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional liability .
insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in connection with this
Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) and two million
dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the Consultant's errors and omissions. Any
deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed five hundred thousand dollars
($500,000) per claim. Such insurance shall be on “an occurrence” basis, except that
Consultant may maintain such insurance on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following
conditions: (1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage shall be
provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion of the Services,
coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy
form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall
purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
the Services.

4.4 All Policies Requirements.

4.41 \Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by

the Consultant.

4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides services to
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members, Agency shall have the right
to require the Consultant to provide certificates of insurance and/or policy
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific Agency
member, SCPPPA or Agency member for which the Services are to be performed.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 4 of 19

25954421



4.5

4.6

Section 5.

Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the payment of any loss. Consultant
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its employees, agents
and subcontractors.

Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Services are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Services are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Consultant
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims to the extent that they
arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the
Consultant in its performance of Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall bear all
losses, costs, damages, expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that
directly arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such claims, (“Liabilities”). Such obligations to
defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not apply to the extent that such
Liabilities are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Agency.

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of
Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise,
Agency shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant accomplishes
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state,

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/6/16
2595442.1

Page 50f 19



or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of
its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall
not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Consultant and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Consultant under this Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing
the Services, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Consultant’s failure to secure workers'
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant.

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant shall have
no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as
an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this
Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant’s unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Consultant. Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and shall be responsible for all

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between ~GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 6 of 19
25954421



6.4

Section 7.

work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated
to ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in
all respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

741
7.2

7.3

7.4

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that Consultant
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the
locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate
of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work as provided in the California Labor Code
must be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Work. In accordance with California
Labor Code Section 1770 and following, the Director of [ndustrial Relations has
determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is
to be performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages
and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be
performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform the project;
and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the Agency and will be
made available on request. Throughout the performance of the Work, Consultant must
comply with all applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages eamed in performance
of the Work. Consultant assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the State of
California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any worker or any
other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 3, Article
2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding Bodies, copies of the
applicable determination of the Director can be found on the web at:
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050

Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2595442.1

Page 7 of 19



Section 8.

Consultant shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period, copies of
Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of Industrial
Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under this Agreement.

Consultant shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774 and
1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Consultant shall forfeit as a penalty to Agency
$50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for such work or craft
in which such worker is employed for any Work done under the Agreement by Consultant
or by any subcontractor under Consultant in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code
and in particular, Labor Code Sections 1770 ef seq. In addition to the penalty and
pursuant to Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker
was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Consultant.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for Services
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant delivering to Agency any or all
records or documents, as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.41 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by Consultant;
and/or

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2595442 1

Page 8 of 19



Section 9.

8.44 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the Services that
is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had completed the Services.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS,

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,

models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Consultant agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or expenditures and
disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3)
years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the
Consultant to this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Goverment Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under the Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.41 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential [nformation shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25954421

Page 9 of 19



engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential Information to the
other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confident; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, subcontractors
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in
connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

9.44 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
Information (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in
writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 10 0f 19
25954421



Section 10

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. |n the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, Generation Services , or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16

25954421

Page 11 0f 19



Alan Carlton, Senior Project Manager
GHD Inc.

4080 Plaza Goldorado Circle, Suite B
Cameron Park, CA 95682
(530)677-5515

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
Meyers Nave

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Consultant and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. [f any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Consultant agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 12 of 19
2595442.1



10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative prior to either
Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution process is
not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time periods for filing
a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order and Consultant's Proposal (if any), the
Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and a
Purchase Order, or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits shall control. In the case of any
conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the Consultant's Proposal, the
Purchase Order shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should
Consultant provide services to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member
(collectively for the purpose of this Section only “Member") pursuant to Section 1.4, the
parties recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the
Purchase Order and Requested Services relating to such Member.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc. )

Rev'd 1/8/16
25954421

Page 13 0f 19



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY GHD INC.

Date Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager - ALAN CARLTON, Senior Project Manager
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Assistant General Counsel

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 ' Page 14 of 19

25954421



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

As requested by NCPA, GHD Inc., (“Consultant”) shall provide engineering consulting services to the
Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”), Agency members, SCPPA or SCPPA members, including,

without limitation:

Engineering Consulting;

Civil, Environmental, Geotechnical and Structural Engineering;

Engineering Geology;

Mapping / Land Surveying / GIS;

Development of Construction Drawings, Plans, Specifications, Technical Documents, Reports and
Presentations;

Construction Observation and Testing;

e Special Inspection; and

e Other Miscellaneous Engineering Tasks.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 15 of 19

2595442.1



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in
Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of
expenses is as follows:

US WEST FEE SCHEDULE*
CAMERON PARK OFFICE
(Effective March 2016)

Hourly Rates

Bruce, Jim Professional $160.00
Burkhart, Thomas Senior Professional $210.00
Carlton, Alan Principal Professional $240.00
Codiroli, Marjorie Administrative Officer $88.00
Ferguson, Paul Senior Professional $185.00
Francis, Shelise Administrative Officer $88.00
[seger, Bryon Inspector $120.00
Jermstad, David Senior Professional $210.00
Jermstad, Kyle Professional $115.00
Moore, Carl Senior Professional $195.00
Ronco, Mike Professional $110.00
Thompson, Sue Administrative Officer $95.00
Trumbull, Christopher Senior Professional $205.00
Vander Dussen, Matthew Survey $120.00
One Man Survey Crew $180.00
Two Man Survey Crew $275.00
Three Man Survey Crew $360.00

Employee time will be billed in accordance with the fees listed above. For other than professional
employees, time spent over 8 hours per day, and time spent on Saturdays will be charged at 1.5 times the
hourly billing rate. Work on Sundays will be charged at 2.0 times the hourly billing rate and holiday work will
be charged at 2.5 times the hourly billing rate. All field personnel charges are portal to portal. Salaried
professional employees will not be charged at premium charge rates for overtime work.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 16 of 19
2595442.1



*These rates do not apply to forensic-related services or to work for which Prevailing Wage obligations exist.

Estimated Prevailing Wage rates are as follows:

One Man Survey Crew (PW high) $210.00
One Man Survey Crew (PW low) $165.00
Two Man Survey Crew (PW high) $245.00
Two Man Survey Crew (PW low) $210.00
Three Man Survey Crew (PW high) $343.00
Three Man Survey Crew (PW low) $276.00
Senior Special Inspector with Equipment (PW) $132.00
Senior Special Inspector Tower Climb (PW) $175.00
Senior Special Inspector (PW) $118.00
Staff Special Inspector with Equipment (PW) $115.00
Staff Special Inspector (PW) $107.00
Senior Geotechnical Engineering Technician (PW) $105.00
Geotechnical Engineering Technician (PW) $103.00
LABORATORY FEE SCHEDULE
CAMERON PARK OFFICE
(Effective October 2015)
Test Unit Rate
Compaction Curve — 4 inch mold (ASTM D698 or D1557) $200.00
Compaction Curve — 6 inch mold (ASTM D698 or D1557) $250.00
Cal Impact (CTM-216) $265.00
Sieve Analysis Including Wash (ASTM C136, C117, and CTM-202) $122.00
Sieve Analysis Wash Only (Passing #200 Sieve) (ASTM C117, and CTM-202) $70.00
Hydrometer, including sieve (ASTM D422, C136, C117, and CTM-202) $175.00
Hydrometer, without sieve (ASTM D422) $125.00
Atterberg Limits (ASTM D4318) $155.00
Moisture Content and Unit Weight (ASTM D2216, D2937, D4643) $32.00
Moisture Content (ASTM D2937, D4643) $22.00
Sand Equivalent (CTM-217) $83.00
R-Value (CTM-301) $300.00
Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 17 of 19

25954421



Direct Shear, 3 point, includes remolding (ASTM D3080) $400.00
Unconfined Compressive Strength — Soil (ASTM D2166) $92.00
Unconfined Compressive Strength — Rock (ASTM D238) : $112.00
Unconfined Compressive Strength — Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C39) $30.00
Unconfined Compressive Strength — Gunite or Shotcrete (ACI 301) $162.00
Unconfined Compressive Strength — Cores (ASTM C42) $162.00
Unconfined Compressive Strength — Grout or Mortar (ASTM C579, C1019, C780) $30.00
Unconfined Compressive Strength — Masonry Block (ASTM C140) $151.00
Corrosion Suite: pH, Res, Chl, Sul, Redox (CTM-643, -422, -417, ASTM D1498) $205.00
TDA Sieve analysis (ASTM D6270) $385.00
TDA Compaction (ASTM D6270) $250.00
Expenses

Expenses and other similar project related costs are billed out at cost plus 15%. The cost of using
equipment and specialized supplies is billed on the basis of employee hours dedicated to projects. Our
rates are as follows:

Office Consumables $ 6.00/hour
Environmental Dept/Construction Inspection consumables : $11.00/hour
Survey Field consumables $15.00/hour
Various Environmental, Construction, and Land Survey Equipment At market
Mileage $0.60/mile

General Terms

The hourly rates set forth above are valid from January 1, 2016 and may be subject to an annual escalation
of up to 5% per year, effective upon 30 days’ prior written notice to NCPA. Pricing for services to be
performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 18 of 19
25954421



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)

for contract work at

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

2672171.2

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-050
Northern California Power Agency and GHD Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 19 0f 19
2595442 1



X PUBLIC ABERCY

/INCPA

& v
v,ﬁ"’,‘ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

DATE: July 18, 2016
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: July 27, 2016

SUBJECT: Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. - First Amendment to Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for Wireline Services; Applicable to the following projects:
All NCPA Generation Services Plant Locations

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speer S METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services

Department: Geothermal

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members | X City of Lodi City of Ukiah
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland
City of Biggs City of Redding Truckee Donner PUD
City of Gridley City of Roseville Other

City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara

Place an X in the box next to the applicable Member(s) above.

SR: 179:16




Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. First Amendment .
July 18, 2016
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 16-57 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the existing three year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pengo
Wireline of California, Inc. for downhole wireline services, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed
amount from $180,000 to $500,000 and amending the scope of work for use at all NCPA
Generation Services plant locations.

BACKGROUND:

Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. provides downhole wireline ‘hoisting’ services which allow
completion of casing calipers, BLM mandated pressure temperature surveys, high temperature
camera runs, gauge ring runs, and several other services that are vital to continuing operation of
various plant facilities. Pengo is often the low cost provider of these services and for this reason
an increase in the authorized funds in the agreement is necessary.

FISCAL IMPACT:

If approved, the total cost of the agreement will not exceed $500,000 over the existing three
year term to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. NCPA will bid
the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA procurement policies and procedures.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other enabling agreements
with Cogco Inc., Expro Americas, Welaco, and Gregg Linville Consulting for similar services and
seeks bids from as many qualified providers as possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost
provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed
at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facility Committee on July 6, 2016 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Participant Committee on
July 11, 2016 and was approved.

SR: 179:16



. Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. First Amendment
July 18, 2016
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (3)
¢ Resolution
¢ First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pengo Wireline of

California, Inc.
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.

SR: 179:16



RESOLUTION 16-57

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH PENGO WIRELINE OF CALIFORNIA, INC.

(reference Staff Report #179:16)

WHEREAS, Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. provides downhole wireline ‘hoisting’ services
which allow completion of casing calipers, BLM mandated pressure temperature surveys, high
temperature camera runs, gauge ring runs, and several other services that are vital to continuing
operation of various plant facilities; and

WHEREAS, Pengo Wireline is often the low cost provider of these services and for this reason
an incrase in the authorized funds of the Agreement is necessary; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change
in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the
existing three year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. for
downhole wireline services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $180,000 to $500,000 and
amending the scope of work for use at all NCPA Generation Services plant locations.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2016 by the following vote

on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

CAROL GARCIA ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIRPERSON _ ASSISTANT SECRETARY



NCPA

NORTHEFIT'.’ GALIFORNIA POVYER AGERCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND PENGO WIRELINE OF CALIFORNIA, INC.

This First Amendment (“Amendment’) to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered into by and
between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. {"Contractor”)
(collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of , 2016.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a three (3) year Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated
effective July 10, 2015, (the “Agreement’) for Contractor to provide downhole wireline services on wells at all

NCPA facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total compensation
authorized by the Agreement from a “NOT TO EXCEED" amount of $180,000 to a ‘NOT TO EXCEED amount

of $500,000; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Scope of Work set forth in Exhibit A to the
Agreement, and

WHERSAS, the Agency now desire to amend the Scope of Work set forth in Exhibit B to the
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 2—Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED Five Hundred Thousand
dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other
reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor,
but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged.

2 Exhibit A - SCOPE OF WORK is amended and restated to read in full as set forth in the attached
Exhibit A.

3. Exhibit B - COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES is amended to read in full as set
forth in the attached Exhibit B.

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.

Template 2-17-15
Page 10of4



4. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as specifically set

, forth herein.
Date: Date:
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PENGO WIRELINE OF CALIFORNIA, INC.
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager DAVID E. WARREN, General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Assistant General Counsel

First Amendment toMulti-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.
Template 2-17-15 Page 2 of 4



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

As requested by NCPA, Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. to provide labor and equipment for downhole
wireline services on wells for work including, but not limited to:

Pressure, temperature, and spinner surveys

Casing caliper surveys

Downhole video services

Miscellaneous wireline work in support of drilling operations

None of the above listed services shall include any work that would qualify as a Public Works Project under the
guidelines established by the State of California.

Pengo Wireline of California may perform these services at all NCPA facilities.

First Amendment toMulti-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.
Template 2-17-15 Page 3 of 4



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees, equipment and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation breakdown and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

DAILY SERVICE COST ESTIMATE: $/UNIT
Daily Operation Charge - hoist service including pressure control

Equipment and 3 Runs $ 5,500.00
Additional runs per day after 3 runs for hoist only $ 400.00
Daily travel cost per vehicle (2 vehicles used per day) $ 500.00
Mileage Charge per mile per vehicle (2 vehicles x 700 miles round trip) $ 225
Per hour charge after 12 hours $ 150.00
Daily Service Charge $1,000.00
Well Pressure Control device Charge $ 330.00
Pressure / Temp Survey High Temp Operation Charge — Minimum $600.00 $ 030
Pressure/ Temp Survey High Temp Depth Charge — Minimum $880.00 $ 044
Gamma ray/Neutron Operating Charge — Minimum $540.00 $ 030
Gamma ray/Neutron Depth Charge — Minimum $600.00 $ 032

For services not specified here, compensation shall be as mutually agreed in writing by Contractor and NCPA.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in excess
of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

First Amendment toMulti-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, [nc.
Template 2-17-15 Page 4 of 4



CPA

”NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
PENGO WIRELINE OF CALIFORNIA, INC.

This agreement for general services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern California Power
Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-
6420 (“Agency”) and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc., a corporation, with its office located at 3529
Standard Street, Bakersfield, CA 93308 (“Confractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as
of O - /¢ , 2015 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California. .

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement
Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods described in the Scope of
Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and

shall'end when Contractor completés the Work, or no later than three (3) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner and
according fo the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing the Work. Contractor
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth

herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Coniractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Contractor shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

1.4 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed. -

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO

EXCEED ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($180,000) for the Work, which shall include . . .

d_,\:i-::‘ e

all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay
that full amount to the Confractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California.
' Contract No. GS-VEN-2015-051

ok
.. 5



Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

= At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and -
each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a Purchase

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In
the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the
ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final

2.1
Work performed;
Contractor performing work hereunder.
Invoices shall be sent fo:
Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, California 95678
Attn: Accounts Payable
2.2
requirements above to pay Contractor.
2.3
24
Order from the Contract Administrator.
2.5
payment for the Requested Work from Agency.
Section 3.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth hérein, Contractor shall, at its sole

cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.

1926708.1

Page 2 of 17



Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement,

Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covéred by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain

Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of not less than one

million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of

4.3

4.2.2

4.2.3

$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000aggregate.  Cormmercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100 000. No

endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded

from general liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

All Policies Requirements.

4.4

Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance prOV[SlonS contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

- Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. Page 3 of 17

! 1926708.1



44

4.3.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the palicies referenced

in Section 4.

4.3.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitied to coverage for the higher limits maintained by

the Contractor.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents

and subcontractors.

4.5

Section 5.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents
or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmiess clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element

of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands,
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs (including without limitation
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of
or in connection with any acts or omissions by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency.

Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. Page 4 of 17

1926708.1



Section 6.

Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active
negligence of Agency.

 STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of
Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency
shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work
rendered pursuant fo this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal

. policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its

employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims fo, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitiement to any contribution fo be paid by Agency for employer

6.2

6.3

confributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its

"employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and

interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.

- Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to

Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing

~ the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of

Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement
to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assiqnment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial

“inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation

and competence of Contractor. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than fo the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall be responsible for all work
performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself had performed such Work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Contractor from any of its

- Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, [ne. Page 5 of 17

1926708.1



6.4

obligations under this Agreemient with respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated o
ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. [f requested by the Agency,
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

Section7.  LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole

expense_during_the _term_of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and

_approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective

Work Requiring Payment of Prevailing Wages. If applicable, in accordance with

California Labor Code Section 1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which these services are to be
performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and
overtime work fixed as provided in the California Labor Code shall be paid to all workers

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten

In ;the event of termination, Contractor sha!l be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to Agency any or all

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the

741
7.2
7.3
professions.
7.4
engaged in performing the services under this Agreement.
Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.
8.1
(10) days prior written notice to-Contractor.
records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).
8.2
Parties.
8.3

Suﬁviva!. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. Page 6 of 17

1926708.1



8.4

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms

of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency’s
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement;:

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by Contractor;
and/or C

8.44 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work that is
unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the Work.

Section 9.

KEEPING AND’STATUS‘O'F‘REC’ORD‘S.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters

covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to

deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release
fo any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents. .

Contractor's Books and Records. Confractor shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor to this

Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under the Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Aéreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.

1926708.1

Page 7 of 17



9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1

9.4.2

Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential Information to the

9.4.3

9.4.4

other party ("the Réceiving Party"). The Recaivirg Party. (&) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confident; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information. ‘

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor fo provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to empI(;yees, agénts, Contractors, contractors, subcontractors
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in
connection with this Agreement. '

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Conclusion of Agreement. Receiving
Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential information (including
all copies thereof) upon termination of this Agreement, if requested by Disclosing
Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between . ,
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. ' Page 8 of 17

1926708.1



copies of such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality. provisions of
this Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party's employees, agents, Contractors, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work'is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with Agency’s operations and the operations of other confractors at the
Project site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon
completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and

frée of all t601s, equipment, waste matéfials™and Tubbish, stemming from or Télating to

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Agency will not be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials
which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such.
Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Agency may assume that anything left on the
Project site an unreascnable length of time after the Work is completed has been
abandoned. Any transportation furnished by Agency shall be solely as an accommodation
and Agency shall have no liability therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized
vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other property which is
utilized by Contractor on the Project site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in
the Work shall be new and in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for

its use of any Agency owned equipment and property provided by Agency for the

Section 10. PROJECT SITE.
10.1
Contractor's Work.
10.2
10.3
performance of Work.
Section 11. WARRANTY.
11.1

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law or public
policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in design and
workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations including engineering, construction and

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. Page 9 of 17

1926708.1



11.2

11.3

other codes and standards and prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with.
the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency may

have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be obligated at its own
expense to perform, all further Work which may be required to correct any deficiencies
which result from Contractor's failure to perform any Work in accordance with the
standards required by this Agreement. If during the term of this Agreement or the one (1)
year period following completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials
or Work used or provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due fo defects in
material and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon
any reasonable written notlce from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's

satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Confractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, provided

by or reasonably obtainable from-suppliers-of-equipment-and-material used-in-the Work:

Section 12.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and

enforce safe work practices, and implemerit an accident/incident prevention program intended to ensure
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of
such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all Agency site programs.

12.1

12.2

123

12.4

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to safely
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request. .

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety fraining and
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified fraining
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and
will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatlves may periodically momtor the safety performance of the
Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall be required to
comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. Non-
compliance with safety, health, ot fire requirements-may result in cessation of work
activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is also expressly acknowledged,
understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency to Contractor under this
Agreement at any time when, or for any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full

compliance with this Section 12.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.

1926708.1

Page 10 of 17



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety representative.
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the Agency site safety
representatlve copies of all written acmdent reports; and coordinate with Agency if further

investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of its
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall conduct
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure of its
employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions. Copies of any
sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous wastes, if
any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any empldyee, who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to

actions-including -removal from-Work-

12.9

- Section 13

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a
Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and
clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials to include diesel fuel used for trucks
owned or leased by the Contractor.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

13.3

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same actionorina
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States Dlstnct Court for

the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agréement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this

Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.

1926708.1

Page 11 of 17



13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term

of this. Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities within

the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 ef seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq.

' thtract'Adminiét?atof.—'Th i§ Agreemefit shall be admiifiisteréd by Keh Speer, Assistarit

13.8

General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s representative. Al
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices. Any written nofice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.
3529 Standard Street
Bakersfield CA, 93308

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

General Counsel -
Northern California Power Agency
Meyers Nave

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between _
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. - Page 120f17 -

1926708.1



13.9

13.10

13.11

Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of

a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for

the report/design preparation.

Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits aftached hereto,

represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be

settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Contractor agree to resolve

13414

. the dispute in accordance with the following:

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.12

“13.11.2

13.11.3

13.11.4

13.115

13.11.6

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute. -

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative prior to either
Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution process is
not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time periods for filing
a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement

and the Exhibits hereto, and Contractor's Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and the Contractor's Proposal, the

Exhibits shall control.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.

1926708.1

Page 13 of 17



13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

1314 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
" participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any-non-signator third parties.

The Parties have executed this Agréement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PENGO WIRELINE OF CALIFORNIA, INC.
Date 7’[/1_4’/(5 Date O -/(0 ~ /S

ot N | L/L b Do
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager DAVID E. WARREN, General Manager
Aftest:

Nout A ik

Assistant Seratary of the-Comission

Approved as to Form:

) I A -TUN //> %@—“\t\
N st. Gengral Counsel )

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. : Page 14 of 17

1926708.1



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

As requested by NCPA, Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. to provide labor and equipment for downhole
wireline services on wells for work including, but not limited to: .

e . Pressure, temperature, and spinner surveys
Casing caliper surveys ‘
e Wireline wellbore plugs
o Downhole video services
« Miscellaneous wireline work in support of drilling operations

Pengo Wireline of California may perform thesé services at all NCPA facilities.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc. : Page 15 of 17

1926708.1



: EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees, equipment and expenses, shall not exceed the amount
set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement The hourly rates and or compensatlon breakdown and an

estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

DAILY SERVICE COST ESTIMATE: ‘$/UNIT
Daily Operation Charge including mining crane hoist service, pressure control _
Equipment and 3 Runs $5,500.00
Additional runs per day after 3 runs for hoist only $ 400.00
Daily travel cost per vehicle (2 vehicles used per day) $ 500.00
Mileage Charge per mile per vehicle (2 vehicles x 700 miles round trip) § 225
Per hour charge after 12 hours $ 150.00
Daily Service Charge $ 1,000.00
Well Pressure Control device Charge $ 330.00
Pressure / Temp Survey High Temp Operation Charge —~ Minimum $600.00 $ 030
Pressure/ Temp Survey High Temp Depth Charge — Minimum $880.00 $ 044
Gamma ray/Neutron Operating Charge — Minimum $540.00 $ 030
Gamma ray/Neutron Depth Charge — Minimum $600.00 $ 032
- Setting Bridge Plug Wireline Charge from Surface to setting depth - Minimum $510.00 $  0.20
$ 270.00

Setting Tool Charge with HiTemp Power Charge

For services not specified here, compensation shall be as mutually agreed in writing by Contractor and

NCPA.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in

excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of Cahforma Inc.

19267081

Page 16 of 17



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

" e £ C;J/_%wm

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background invesﬁgations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity

and employment history of all employees of
' . 14:/:3 o COnelve ‘

{Company name)

for contract work at AN Y /4 74&/\ /, 74 _

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as rquired by Yhe Califomnia Energy Commission Decision for the
<7

above-named project. o(ig:)

_
(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this /D74 day of Cfc:/;:/ 2005

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT
SECURITY PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE
FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE
PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Cafifornia Power Agency and Pengo Wireline of California, Inc.

1926708.1

Page 17 of 17



4 NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

DATE: July 18, 2016

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: July 27, 2016

SUBJECT:

Fiynn Resources Consultants, Inc. Staff Report

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Marty Hostlerd‘“\% METHOD OF SELECTION:
Reliability Compliance N/A
Manager
Division: Executive Services
Department. Compliance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members | X City of Lodi City of Ukiah
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland

City of Healdsburg

City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Redding
City of Roseville
City of Santa Clara

Truckee Donner PUD
Other

If other, please specify.

Place an X in the box next to the applicable Member(s) above.

SR: 180:16



. Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc. — Five-Year Multi-task Consulting Services Agreement
July 18, 2016
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 16-58 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc., (Flynn RCI)
for services related to electric transmission, power generation, regulatory support, contracts,
compliance, and electric market issues, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $3,000,000 over five years for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California
Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA members.

BACKGROUND:

Ever changing and evolving electric transmission, generation, regulatory, contracts, compliance
and market issues impact NCPA, SCPPA, and our members. Flynn RCI offers a host of these
services to assist NCPA, SCPPA, and our members with issues resulting from said changes;
and

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $3,000,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. NCPA will bid the specific scope of work
consistent with NCPA procurement policies and procedures. Purchase orders referencing the
terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and

procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based
on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on July 6, 2016, and was
recommended for Commission approval.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi E-nergy Center Participants Committee
on July 11, 2016, and was approved.

SR: 180:16



Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc. — Five-Year Multi-task Consulting Services Agreement .
July 18, 2016
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

G

RANDY OWARD
General Manager

b

Attachments: (2)
—~ Resolution
— Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

SR: 180:16



RESOLUTION 16-58

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVIVES AGREEMENT
WITH FLYNN RESOURCES CONSULTANTS, INC.

(reference Staff Report #180:16)

WHEREAS, ever changing and evolving electric transmission, generation, regulatory, contract,
compliance and market issues impact the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its members,
the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA members; and

WHEREAS, Flynn RCI offers a host of services to assist NCPA, SCPPA and our members
with issues resulting from said changes; and

WHEREAS, on July 11, 2016, the LEC Project Participant Committee approved the agreement
with Flynn RCI in an amount not to exceed $3,000,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change
in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21066 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency authorizes the General Manager, or his designee, to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting
Services Agreement with Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc., for services related to electric
transmission, power generation, regulatory support, contracts, compliance, and electric market
issues, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $3,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by

SCPPA members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ___ day of 2016, by the
following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda :
BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra




CAROL GARCIA
CHAIRPERSON

NCPA Resolution 16-58

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



& FURUE ADENCY

NCPA

/ ORTHERN CALIFORNIA POIVER AGENTY

MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND FLYNN RESOURCES CONSULTANTS, INC.

This agreement for consulting services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc. a California corporation with
its office located at 5440 Edgeview Drive, Discovery Bay, CA 94505 (“‘Consultant”) (together sometimes
referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2016 (“Effective Date"} in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant
shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and
incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five (5) year from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing the Services. Consultant
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Services set forth
herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Services. In the event that Agency, at any time during the term of this Agreement, has
concerns about the assignment of any such personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon
receiving written notice from Agency, work with Agency to address Agency'’s concerns.

1.4 Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may include
Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the
terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's Services
under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall
identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested Services"), may include a not-to-
exceed monetary cap on Requested Services and expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and a time by which the Requested Services shall be completed.
Consultant shall have seven calendar days from the date of the Agency’s issuance of the
Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the
Requested Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services, or does not respond within the seven day period

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ -VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/19/16 Page 10f 15
2650744.1



specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services on the
terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO
EXCEED three million dollars ($3,000,000) for the Services, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses
and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein
as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant,
but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Services performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Consultant performing services hereunder; and

= At Agency’s option, when the Consultant's Scope of Work identifies tasks, for each
work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries showing the name of
the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of
the work, and each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to
Agency’s reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred.
Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of
the requirements above to pay Consultant.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

2.4 Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any
Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of
written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between __-VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16 Page 2 of 15
26507441



2.5  Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of its Services to submit its final invoice for the Requested Services. In the
event Consultant fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the
ninety (90) day period, Consultant is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final
payment from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Services.

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement,
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall maintain
Statutory Workers’ Compensation [nsurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant with limits of not less than

~ one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. If Consultant owns any automobile, Consultant shall
maintain automobile liability insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term
of this Agreement covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any
action, arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1)
owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. Consultant shall maintain
automobile liability insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this
Agreement covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any
action, arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1) of
any vehicle not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The policy
shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured
retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between __-VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16 Page 3 of 15
2650744.1



contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent
coverage may be excluded from general liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.3  Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional liability

-insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in connection with this
Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) covering the
Consultant's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not
exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per cfaim. Such insurance shall be
on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions: (1) the retroactive date of the
policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be
maintained for at least two (2) years after completion of the Services and, if requested by
Agency, evidence of coverage shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within two (2)
years of completion of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not
replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a
minimum of two (2) years after completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency,
provide evidence of coverage during this period.

4.4 All Policies Requirements.

4.41 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

4.43 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitied to coverage for the higher limits maintained by
the Consultant.

4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides services to
Agency members, SCPPA, and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this Agreement,
Agency shall have the right to require Consultant to provide certificates of

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between __-VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16 Page 4 of 15
2650744.1



4.5

4.6

Section 5.

insurance and/or policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the
specific Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member.

Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the payment of any loss. Consultant
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its employees, agents
and subcontractors.

Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Services are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in @ manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Services are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Consultant
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands,
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs (including without limitation
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of
or in connection with any acts or omissions by Consultant, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence or willful misconduct of
Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction
agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also
be for the active negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ -VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16

26507441

Page 50f 15



Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise,
Agency shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant accomplishes
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state,
or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of
its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall
not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Consultant and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Consultant under this Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing
the Services, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Consultant's failure to secure workers’
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant.

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant shall have
no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as
an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this
Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Consultant. Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ -VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16 Page 6 of 15
2650744.1



Section 7.

subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and shall be responsible for all
work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated
to ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in
all respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

741
7.2

7.3

Section 8.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that Consultant
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for Services
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant delivering to Agency any or all
records or documents, as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ -VEN-201_-_
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16

2650744.1

Page 7 of 15



Section 8.

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by Consultant.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Consultant agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or expenditures and
disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3)
years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the
Consultant to this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after -
final payment under the Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.41 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ -VEN-201_-___

Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16

26507441

Page 8 of 15



9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential Information to the
other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confident; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, subcontractors
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in
connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the

Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
Information (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in
writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of
such Confidential [nformation, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable taw. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party’'s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ -VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16
2650744.1

Page 9 of 15



Section 10

MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orina
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 ef seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Marty Hostler, P.E.
NCPA Reliability Compliance Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ ~VEN-201_-____
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16
2650744.1

Page 10 of 15



10.8  Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Doug Boccignone

Flynn Resources Consultants Inc.
5440 Edgeview Drive

Discovery Bay, CA 94505

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
Meyers Nave

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

109 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Consultant and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. Al
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Consultant agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between __-VEN-201_-___

Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16 Page 11 of 15
2650744.1 .



10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative prior to either
Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution process is
not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time periods for filing
a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

10.12 Controlling Provisions. [n the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal (if any), the
Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and a
Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits shall control. In the case of any
conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the Consultant's Proposal, the
Purchase Order shall control.

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should
Consultant provide Services to an Agency member, SCCPA and/or a SCPPA member
(collectively for the purposes of this section only "Member”) pursuant to section 1.4, the
parties recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the
Purchase Order and Requested Services relating to such Member.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ -VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16 Page 12 0f 15
26507441



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date

Randy S. Howard, General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Assistant General Counsel

FLYNN RESOURCES CONSULTANTS INC.

Date

Douglas A. Boccignone, Chief Financial
Officer

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between __-VEN-201_-_
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.
Rev'd 5/26/16 Page 13 of 15

2650744.1



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES
FLYNN RCI SCOPE OF SERVICES TO NCPA, SCPPA, AND THEIR MEMBERS

NCPA is entering into this agreement with Flynn Resource Consultants Inc. (“Consultant”) so that NCPA,
SCPPA, and their members may secure professional consulting services related to electric transmission,
power generation, regulatory support, contracts, compliance and electric market issues affecting Electrical
Power Utilities and/or entities’ large electrical power consumers.

The Consultant may be requested to perform the activities listed below during the term of this Agreement
for NCPA, a member, and/or SCPPA if NCPA, member(s), and/or SCPPA agree to terms, condition, and
compensation for said detailed scope services. Such activities may also include monitoring, meeting
participation, coordinating with affected or other participating parties, and, as necessary, preparing and
submitting formal position paper and other documentation.

1. Grid Planning Activities and Transmission Studies
e California and regional transmission planning activities
e Power flow, short circuit and dynamic modeling

2. Regionalization Activities
« CAISO Regionalization Process, Transmission Access Charge, Governance and Resource

Adequacy
o Coordination with the California Municipal Utilities Association and Northern California Power
Agency on these activities '

3. State Regulatory Matters
e CEC, CPUC and other western region state commission proceedings

4. Federal Regulatory Matters
 Interconnection Agreement and Metered Subsystems Agreement Support

5. Electricity Market Issues
6. NERC/WECC Compliance Support

7. Litigation Support and Other Services related to electric transmission, power generation, regulatory
support, contracts, compliance and electric markets

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ ~VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16 Page 14 of 15
26507441



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all tasks under this agreement, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed
three million dollars ($3,000,000). The hourly rates and/or compensatlon break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

Consultant hourly rates for the professional services are listed below.

Labor Category Hourly Rate (FY16-17)
Principal $300 per hour
Managing Consultant $280 per hour

Senior Consultant — Power Engineer $270 per hour

Senior Consultant $245 per hour
Consultant $210 per hour
Associate Consultant $190 per hour

Analyst $135 per hour

Support Services $65 per hour

Each year, effective July 1, the applicable hourly rates for each labor category shall increase by 3%,
rounded to the nearest $5.

Travel (at coach rates), food, and miscellaneous expenses, except automobile mileage, associated with the
provision of services hereunder shall be billed at cost. Automobile mileage will be billed at the rate
approved by the Internal Revenue Service.

For any month in which specialized modeling software is used to perform services under this agreement,
the following charges shall apply:

Power flow modeling -  $ 225/month
Short circuit modeling — $ 650 /month
OASIS Data - $ 950 /month
Market modeling - $ 3,000/month

Each year, effective July 1, the specialized modeling software costs shall increase by 3%, rounded to the

nearest $5.
Specialized software costs that exceed the above amounts may be billed with the prior approval of the

Agency.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permlited by the Internal Revenue Service.

2673446.1

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between _ -VEN-201_-___
Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resources Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/26/16 Page 15 0f 15
26507441



Item 18

No Staff Report
Included for this
1tem.



	Draft_Commission_Meeting_Minutes_06232016
	Item_6_Draft_Finance_Meeting_Minutes
	Item_10_Financials_June_2016
	Item_11_Treasurers_Report_June_2016
	Item_12_AmendmentNo1_Alameda_SMSA
	Item_13_CISCO_Air
	Item_14_3D_Techncial_Services
	Item_15_GHD
	Item_16_Pengo_Wireline_California
	Item_17_Flynn_Resources_Consultants
	Item_18_Election_FY17_Officers

